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June 18. 2019

19-

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
retroactively exercise a renewal option and amend existing an agreement with the vendor listed in bold
below to provide services designed to improve breast and cervical screening rates in Belknap, county,
by increasing the total price limitation by $22,000 from $460,549 to $482,549 and by extending the
completion date from June 30. 2019 to June 30, 2021, effective retroactive to June 30, 2019 upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on May 2, 2018,
Item #21.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Number
Location Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

Catholic Medical

Center

177240- B002 100 McGregor Street,
Manchester, NH 03102

$182,951 $0 $182,951

Greater Seacoast

Community Health
166629-B001

100 Campus Drive,
Portsmouth, NH 03801

$163,102 $0 $163,102

HealthFirst Family
Care Center, Inc.

158221-8001
841 Central Street,
Franklin, NH 03235

$16,500 $22,000 $38,500

Manchester

Community Health
Center

157274-B001
145 Hollis Street,
Manchester NH 03101

$97,996 $0 $97,996

Total: $460,549 $22,000 $482,549

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and State Fiscal Year 2021, upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the Contractor resolved problems with the execution of the
contract amendment with the Department after the deadline for Governor and Executive Council
submission for the June 19, 2019 meeting. The other three (3) Contractors listed in the table were
submitted for June 19, 2019 Governor and Executive Council meeting.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Contractors to continue to provide outreach and
educational services focused on improving cancer screening rates among low income women in New
Hampshire. Outreach and education services include the use of a Community Health Worker (CHW) to
provide education, outreach, and/or patient navigation to women who have never been screened or have
not been screened recently. The Contractors prioritize serving uninsured and underinsured women
between the ages of 21 and 64 whose incomes are at or below 250% of the Federal Poverty Level.
Service will focus on assessing and addressing barriers to access cancer screening, follow-up
diagnostics and/or treatment. The Contractor will have clinical staff (e.g. RN, APRN, MD) available to
assist and advise the CHW on follow-up of any clients who require case management for diagnostics
and/or treatment services.

In 2014, cancer was the leading cause of death in NH. Breast cancer incidence rates in the state
continue to be higher than the national levels with New Hampshire ranking second highest in the country.
Breast cancer is the most frequently diagnosed cancer among women in New Hampshire and in the
United States. Nearly 83% of women in NH complete their recommended screening mammogram placing
NH as the seventh highest for screening in the US, however disparities in screening rates persist among
low Income women with lower educational attainment. Due to advances in screening, early detection
and treatment. New Hampshire currently ranks seventh lowest for breast cancer mortality rates in the
country. Between 2009 and 2013, close to 75% of documented breast cancers in New Hampshire were
diagnosed at a localized stage, where the five-year survival rate is 98.8%.

Cervical cancer is one of the only preventable cancers when abnormal cells are found through a
P.ap test. The majority of women in New Hampshire receive routine screening for cervical cancer (85.3%)
and we are the state with the lowest incidence rate of cervical cancer. Nearly 77% of cervical cancers
are diagnosed at the localized stage when the five-year survival rate is 91.3%. Equally as important are
the number of precancerous cells detected and removed prior to the development of cervical cancer.

By improving cancer screening rates, DPHS seeks to reduce mortality from breast and cervical
cancer in NH. The early detection of breast and cervical cancer through screening greatly improves
cancer patients' survival.

Approximately 395,988 individuals will be served from July 1. 2019 through June 30, 2021.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1 that reserved the right of the parties to
renew the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for the two (2) years at this time.

Vendor effectiveness in delivering services will be monitored via the following;

•  Monitoring of all outreach activities implemented to increase cancer screening rates.

•  Monitoring the number of clients reached, and the number of clients screened.

•  Monitoring data on an individual level pertaining to barriers to screening and strategies

used to address barriers.

•  Monitoring of Contractor management plans and sustainability efforts.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Division of Public
Health Services may be unable to continue to provide uninsured and low-income women with timely
access to breast and cervical cancer services. Additionally, there may be a negative impact on the
Department's statewide efforts to increase the rate of breast and cervical cancer screening for all women
in NH.

Area served Belknap County.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

(CFDA) #93.898, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN), 1NU58DP006298.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

espectfully submitted,

^Jqffrey A. Meyers
)mmissioner

The Deparlnient of Health and Human Services' Mission is lo join communities and families
in providing opporlunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FISCAL DETAILS

NH BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER SCREENING PROGRAM COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL
CANCER SCREENING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

05-95-90-902010-56590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC. 158221-B001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title Activity
Code

Current

Modified

Budqet

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budqet

2018 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $5,500 $0 $5,500

2019 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $11,000 $0 $11,000

2020 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $0 $11,000 $11,000

2021 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $0 $11,000 $11,000

Subtotal $16,500 $22,000 $38,500

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER 157274-B001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title Activity
Code

Current

Modified

Budqet

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budqet

2018 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $17,758 $0 $17,758

2019 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $26,746 $0 $26,746

2020 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $26,746 $0 $26,746

2021 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $26,746 $0 $26,746

Subtotal $97,996 $0 $97,996

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH 166629-B001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title Activity
Code

Current

Modified

Budqet

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budqet

2018 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $20,827 $0 $20,827

2019 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $47,425 $0 $47,425

2020 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $47,425 $0 $47,425

2021 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $47,425 $0 $47,425

Sub-total $163,102 $0 $163,102

Financial Details

BCCP Community and Clinical Cancer Screening Improvement contracts
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FISCAL DETAILS

NH BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER SCREENING PROGRAM COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL
CANCER SCREENING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 177240-B001

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title Activity
Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102/500731

Contracts for ,

Proq Svcs 90080081 $24,650 $0 $24,650

2019 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $52,767 $0 $52,767

2020 102/500731

Contracts for

Proq Svcs 90080081 $52,767 $0 . $52,767

2021 102/500731

Contracts for

Prog Svcs 90080081 $52,767 $0 $52,767

Subtotal $182,951 $0 $182,951

Total $460,549 $22,000 $482,549

Financial Details

BCCP Community and Clinical Cancer Screening Improvement contracts
Page 2 of 2



New Hampshire Department of Heattti and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinical Cancer.
Screening Improvement Project.. : ' !. " . " . . ,

State of New. Hampahire :
Department of Heaim and Humah Services

Amendniertt #i to the NH Breast and Ceivfcal Cancer Screening Program Cbmmunfty and
ClihicaJ Cancer Screening Improvement Project :

This Ist Amendment to the Breast and Cervical Cancer keening .Program Corrimurilty and Olnicaj
Cancer keening Improvement Project contrad (herelnator referred to as 'Amendment #1"). dated thld
12th :day of February, 2019, is by and between the State of New: Hampshire, bepaiiment of. Health and
Human Services (hereinafter referred to asthe'St^" or "Department') and HealthFird Family Care
Center, Inc (hereinafter referred "the Contractor'), a corporation ̂ h a place df^slness at 841
Central Str^, Franklin, NH 03235, : \ . >■ . :
WHEREAS,' pursuant b ari agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Cpuricil on May 2, 2018. (Ibm #21), the Contracbr agreed b PSffprin ceibin Miylces based upon the
terms and cpndltipns spedjfied- in the Contract as amended and In conslderatiph of certain sums
spedfled; and

WHEREAS, the.Stab and the Cc^actor have agreed to make changes to the scope of yvork, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, puisuanl to Form P-37, General Provisions; Paragraph 18; and Exhibit ^'l. Revisjoris b
General. Provisions Paragraph 3, .the State may niodify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract lipotS written agr^eenient of the parties and approval from the Governor arid Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exterid the torni of the ^reement and increase the price limitation; arb
NOW THEREFORE, in consideratidn of the foregoing arid the mutual coyenanb and conditions
conblned in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

,-1. Form P-37 .General Proyisbrw, Block 1.7,.Cornpletjon pate, to read:
. , June 30/2021;

.2, Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1,8, Price Limttation, to read:
$38,500. ^

3, Form.P-37,.General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officerfor State Agericy, to read:.
Nathan D: White, Director.

4, Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1,10, Stab Agency Telephone Nurnber, to read:
603-271t9631,

5, Add Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 1. Provisions Applicable to All Services, Subsection
1,4, to read:

1,4. > NotwKhstahding any other provision of the Contract to the coritrary, no services shall
contiriue after; June 30, 2019,:and the Departrhent shall not be liable for any payments

:  for services provided after June 30, 2019, uht^ and until an apprppiiation for these
services has bmn received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the
spy 2020-2021 biennium.

6, Add Exhibit B-3 Budget

7,. Add Ebiibit B-4 Budget

HeaKhFlrft Family Care Center, Ine : ' ' ' Amendment Fl
RFP-20ie-OPHS-21'6F£AS PageloTd



New Hampshfre Department of Heattti and Human Services
NH Breast tend Cervical Cancer Screenbie Program Community and Clinical Cancer.
Screening Improvement Project . . ..

This amendment ehall be

IN WITNESS WHEREOF

effecUve.upcm the date of Oovemor and Executive Cpundi.approval,
. the partlee liave ̂  their hands aie of the date written beloW, .

S^ id New Hampshire . . •
. Diriment of Healtb and Human Setylces

Date
a

Lisa Morris

Dlrc^r

HealthFlnst Famlty^î Ceht^n^

Name: t; cW »yj er ^
Titlei . f •

f

.  >

^howledgem^ of Contiedbr's signature:

State of ̂ ]fUll|(!lfn(^hlLl'. Countv-of ■ on ' ■ before the urw^lgned officer,
personally appearecTthe person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
slgnSd aboverend~8efcnc9fi<leclged that s/he executed this document In the ca^city Indicated above. ^

i
Signers of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of die Peace

My Commission Expiresbtpires; .

•s/

/O

^BL\^
'0/0

<?-

MP

HeaKhFirst Farrey Cara Cantar, Hk
•RFP'201S-OPHS-21'68EA8

Amendment #1

P8ge2or3



Ni^ ̂nipshire Department of Heatth end Human Services
' NH and Cervical Cancer Scrying Program Community and Clinical Cancer
Screening Improvement Prote^.

The preceding Amehdmeht, having been revtwed by this offlM, Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

:'bFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENE^ . .

Date '— , Namr/'A^'<5r ^
ywie-. ' i^ace>^

•  I hereby certify, th^ the forcing Amendment WM approved by the Governor and Exeq^e Council of the State
. of New Hamo^ire at the Meeting on: ' • fdate ofmeetlnfll , ,

OFFICE OF THE SECRCTARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

HesithFlnt FenShr Cere Center, tnc Arhendment #1
RFP-201S-DPH8'21-BREA8 Page 3 Of 3



Exhibit B-3 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Program Name; HealthFlrst Family Care Center

Budget Request for: Breast & Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP) Services

Budget Period: July 1,2019 to June 30,2020

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

HealthRrst Family Care C^er
Exhibit B-3 Budget
Page i of i

[B I

minir^ai■IndirectH hTotal^H ■Indlrect^^BfrnfaiM ^■Ulrect^^^Btndlrect^^^Kl ntal^^
lincrementaii ^■Elx^B ; Incremental lincrementaij 1

1. Total Salary/Waqes $ 11,610.09 $ 1,161.01 $ 12,771.10 $5,805.05 $ 580.50 $6,385.55 $5,805.05 $  580.50 $ 6,385.55
2. Employee Benefits (25% of waaes) $ 2,902.52 $  290.25 $ 3,192.78 $1,451.26 $ 145.13 $1,596.39 $ 1,451.26 $  145.13 $  1,596.39
3. Consultants $ • $ $ • $ $ $ $ • $ $
4. Equipment: $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Rental $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

5. Sidles: $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
EducationaJ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
1 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Pharmacy $ $  • . $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Medical $ - $ $ . $ $ $ $ - $ $
Office $ 1,603.69 $  160.37 $ 1,764.06 $ $ $ J. 1,603.69 $  160.37 $  1.764.06

6. Travel $ • $ $ - $ $ $ $ . $ $
7. Occupancy $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
8. Current Expenses $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $  ' $

Telephone % $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Postage $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Sul)$cr1ptk>ns $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Insurance $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
10. Marketinq/Communications $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
11. Staff Education and Training $ $ $ $ $ $' $ $ $
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ . $ $ • $ $ $ $ . $ $
13. Other (BCCP CUENT SERVICE): $ 1,140.00 $  114.00 $ 1,254.00 $ $ $ $ 1,140.00 $  114.00 $  1,254.00

$ • $ $ - $ $ $ $ - $
1$ - 1 $ 1$ • 1 $ $ $ 1$ - 1 $
[T

-

$ [L. $ $ $
-

$
lfSllr7j2S6f3"lll i:$Ill725[63lIISi18<981'941lISIr7i256i31ll l$E25163J i$z{98ii9ali$lio;ooo!ooj| |$lLtOOOiOp] I$li;it000!00ll

10.0%

Contractor InHiais:
\0_



Exhibit B-4 Budget

ContractorJsnareT^atcti[LotaHBrpgramiGpst ndedlbflDHM Sicontractghar^e

Direct itotai motel Direct Indirectindirect Direct Indirect metal

ir>cremental hixed Incremental^BEIxedUine Incremental ^xed

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Program Name: HealthFlrst Family Care Center

Budget Request for: Breast & Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP) Services

Budget Period: July 1,2020 to Jurte 30.2021

1 ■ Total Salary/Wages

2. Employee Benefits (25% ot wages)

3. Consultants

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:
Educational

I flh

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Currerrt Expenses

Telepftone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and i^al

insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. Marketing/Communications

11 ■ Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (BCCP CUENT SERVICE):

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

HealthFirst Family Care Center
Exhibit B-4 Budget

Page i of i

$ 11.958.30

2,989.58

1.386.06

1.140.00

1.195.83

298.96

138.61

114.00

13.154.13

3.288.53

1.524.67

1,254.00

$5,979.15
1,494.79

597.92

149.48

t$I1j7ff1I3T^llI$I1>7A7/49]tl$1191^33l)t$A7{423i9^|l$$7A7i39Jil$8'.221ty?J|l$lLO{(X>0!OOJ|l$A1'.OOQ!OPJ|l$11i1tOOO!Ooj|

$6,577.07
1,644.27

$5,979.15

1,494.79

1,386.06

1,140.00

597.92

149.48

138.61

114.00

6.577.07

1.644.27

1,524.67

1.254.00

10.0%

Contrador initials

Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Wifiiam M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HEALTHFIRST FAMILY

CARE CENTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business iri New Hampshire on April 23.

1996.1 fiirther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business 10; 248976

op

y
StU

4"

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF. ' '

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the_ State of New Hampshire,

this 24th day of April A.D. 2017.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
.. '(Corporation without Soal).

dp hereby certify that; ■ . .. .

1. ;l am the duiv elerted Vice Chairman ̂  the Board of Directors for the Nonprof|t,Corix)fatJon
HeaithFlrfit Famllv Care Center. Irtc. . ' ;

2. James Wells is the duly elected Chairman of the Board of the Corporation.: ..

.3. RichaVdD.

4. The Mowing r^liitlori was adopted at a me^r^ of the.Board of Difectora-held on the 20th dav of
: February. 2019: '

RESOLVED: That the Chairman of the Board of HealthFlrst Famllv Care Cer^er. Inc. and/or the President

: and CEO are hereby authorized on behalf of thte Corporation to enter into Boi^-approved arid previously
. authorized contra^ with; agencies of tl^ Federal ̂ vemmerrt and the State of Nw Hampshire arxl to
execute any and all documents, agrwments, and other Instruments; and any ameridmente, revlstohs, dir

.  rriodlficiattans related thereto, as they may deern necessary, destfable, or appropriate as direded by the
Board.'

5. Thefor^ir^ resolution has rid been amen<Ml pr revoked, and .remains in full force ^ ̂
1«*davof Jutv. 2019.'

kftr^ure iff Vico Chaimisn}

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE •.

Countv of Merrlmack .

The fo^ofng Irtatrumerrt was acknowledged before rhe this gfanlgy.

(^gnsture of Notary Pubfic)

donna m. toomey
Public - Now

My Cofhmtoloo Bxfim SefMrOM 27,2022

My Commission Expires 7 - 9?-- 9D^



HealthFirst

Family Care Center, Inc.

841 Ccnirti Slrcet, Krankliu, iN'H 03235 P: (603)934-0177 wnH.hcaUhflrsftaniily.org "Healf/i care for ifte who/e/amify

June 10,2019

Ms. Catherine A. Cormier

Contracts & Procurement

DHHS, State ofNH
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

Dear Ms. Cormier;

Please accept this letter as official notification that the certificate of vote attached was completed by the Board of
Directors with the intent of being enforced for any actions of the noted signatories for the duration of this state fiscal
year. This means we approve the individuals to sign contracts with the State ofNH through June 30,2019.

We hope this is satisfactory, and we can proceed with completion of the contract process .

On behalf of the HealthFirst Family Care Center Board of Directors.

James Wells, Chairman of the Board



/\C:ORD'

HEALFIR-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

AGOULD

DATE (MMrtJOrtTYY)

6/5/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROoucER License#AGR8150
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

TaJc nV Ext>: (603) 622-2855 K5. no.:(603) 622-2854
agould@clarklnsurance.com

INSURERfSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAfC«

INSURER A; Cltlzens Ins Co of America 31534

INSURED

Health First Family Care Center
841 Central St

Franklin, NH 03235

iNsiiRFR R AIX Soecialtv Insurance Co 12833

INSURER C :

INSURER D;

INSURER F ;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT \MTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LIE.
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL
INSO

COMMERCML GENERAL UABIUTY

aCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEWL AGGRE;

POLICY

JE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

^Si Oloc
OTHER:

SUDR
WVD

OBVA044172

POLICY NUMBER

7/1/2018 7/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED

MED EXP fAnv one person!

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS . COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

300,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
iEflJKSSOflDU

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

OBVA044172 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 BODILY INJURY (Py pefsoni

5S ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

N'
Ai

BODILY INJURY IPot acoOent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPwaccidentT

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000,000

OBVA044172 7/1/2018 7/1/2019
AGGREGATE

1,000,000

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY <

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERyeXECUTIVE
WFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
^ndaioryln NH)
If vM, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/ N

a
WBVA044167 7/1/2018 7/1/2019

y PER
^ STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

Prof GAP Liability

Prof Gap Liability

L1VD302912

L1VD302912

7/1/2018

7/1/2018

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

Each Claim

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRJPTION OF OPERATIONS t LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Addltlonel Remertes Schedule, mey be •tteched If more epece I* required!

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NevY Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



c HealthFirst

It is the mission of
HeaithFirst Family Care (denier, Jnc.

to provide high quality primary healthcare,
treatment, prevention and education

services required by the residents of the
service area, regardless of inability to pay

or insurance status, depending upon
available HealthFirst resources.

HealthFirst coordinates and cooperates
with other community and regional health
care providers to assure
region the fullest possible range

services
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directprs
HealthFir^ Family Care Center, Inc.

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc., which
comprise the balance sheets as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of
operations-and-changes-in-nst-assstc-and-eash-fiows-fer-ths-ysars-thsn-endedrand-the-relatsd-notes
to the financial statements.

Management's Responstbfffty for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these-financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
"financial'statements thatare free from-materiarmisstatement,-whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Com^oller
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether tfi^finandal statements are ff^from mat^al misst^ment

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entit/s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bangor. ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Glasionbury, CT • Charleston, \M/ • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.corri
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Board of Directors I

HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc. j
Page 2 ^ ?

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Matter

Our audit was .conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of-expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements; Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures. Including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 28,
2019 on our consideration of HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

h{cyUA^f

Portland, Maine

January 28, 2019



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER. INC.

Balance Sheets

September 30, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term certificates of deposit
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $253,332 in 2018 and $280,000 in 2017

Grants receivable

Other current assets

-Total-eurrent-assets

Investment in lirhited liability companies
Long-term certificates of deposit
Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Total liabilities and net assets

2018 2017

967,652 $  528,231
77,246 76,189

657,255 697,912
77,268 72,304

50.262 12.704

1,829j683- -1,387-^^340 ■

23,228 21,272

51,851 50,958

168,136 158,301

1.669.431 1.746.369

$ 3.742.329 $ 3.364.240

$  71,787 $ 101,204
107,411 54,877

237,298 208,104
53.425 32,299
53.446

523,367

1.547.634

2,071,001

50.187

446,671

1.601.080

2,047,751

1.671.328 1.316.489

$ 3.742.329 $ 3.364.240

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Operating revenue

Net assets, end of year

Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

$ 3,810,153
1740.3881

$ 3,332,620
M64.4001

Net patient service revenue 3,069,765 2,868,220

Grants, contracts and contributions
Equity in earnings of limited liability companies
Other operating revenue

2,038,647
1,956

212.245

1,779,214
4,069

27.030

Total operating revenue 5.322.613 4.678.533

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits

Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Interest expense

3,486,-153
1,333,753

76,375

71.493

2,983,362

1,413,941
76,686

55.144

Total operating expenses 4.967.774 4.529.133

Excess of revenue over expenses and
increase in unrestricted net assets 354,839 149,400

Net assets, beginning of year 1.316.489 1.167.089

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities
Provision for bad debts

Depreciation
Equity in earnings of limited liability companies

. (Increase) decrease in the following assets
Patient accpunts receivable
Grants receivable

-  -©ther-current-assets- - - - •

Increase (decrease) in the.following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payrojl and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

"Cash"flows'from"investing"activities ~
Capital expenditures
Increase in buj[ding reserves ,
Reinvested interest from certificates of deposit
Investment in limited liability company

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from line of credit

Repayments on line of credit
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid for interest

$  354^839 $ 149,400

740,388 464,400
76,375 76,686

(1.956) (4,069)

(699J31) (772,648)
(4,964) 1,393

-(-377558)-- (77807-)

52,534 (59,141)
29,194 (29,880)
21.126 (13.411)

530.247 (195.077)

(9,272)
(1,950)

{12!o88)
(1.400)
n.Qool

(11.222^ (439.488)

. 100,000

(29,417) (22,075)
- 340,000

(50.187) (44.765)

(79.604) 373.160

439,421 (261,405)

528.231 789.636

S  967.652 $ 528.231

$  7.1,493 $ 55,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Organization

HeaithPirst Family Care Center, Inc. (the Organization) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the
State of New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) providing
high-quality' primary healthcare, treatment, prevention, and education services required by the
residents in the Twin Rivers Region of New Hampshire, commensurate with available resources, and
coordinating and cooperating with other community and regional healthcare providers to ensure the
people of the region the fullest possible range of health services.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
princijDles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial, statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of-revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less.

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit consist of deposits at local banks with maturities of 6 to 24 months, at
interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 1.8%. These are valued at cost, which approximates fair value.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts by analyzing its past history
and identification of trends for patient balances for all funding sources in the aggregate. In
addition, balances in excess of one year old are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews
data about collections in evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

-6-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2018 2017

Balance, beginning of year $ 280,000 $ 65,000
Provision for bad debts 740,388 464,400

Write-offs (767.0561 (249.4001

Balance, end of year $ 253,332 $ 280,000

The increase in the provision for bad debts and related write-offs during 2018 occurred because
certain managed care and commercial insurance companies will not retroactively approve provider
credentiais7whlch"are~required-in-order tO'receive-payrnent-for-servicesrfor-new-providersr-The
matter was exacerbated by the untimely loss of the Organization's medical director in January
2017.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. All such amounts are considered collectible. Grants and contributions whose restrictions

"are rnet~withlfrthe same year as recognize are reports as unrestfict^ revenue~ih"the"
accompanying financial statements.

Investment In Limited Liability Companies

Primary Health Care Partners (PHCP1

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to PHCP.
The purposes of PHCP are: (i) to engage and contract directly with the payers of health care to
influence the design and testing of emerging payment methodologies: (ii) to achieve the three part
aim of better care for individuals, better health for populations and lower growth in expenditures in
connection with both governmental and non-governmental payment systems; (iii) to undertake joint
activities to offer access to high quality, cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home
care and other community-based services, based upon the Patient-Centered Medical Home mode!
of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being by developing and implementing
effective clinical and administrative systems in a manner that is aligned with the FQHC model, and
to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the quality of primary care services
delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in
any and all lawful activities, including without limitation the negotiation of contracts, agreements
and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The Organization's investment in PHCP is
reported using the equity method and the investment amounted to $22,589 and $20,298 at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, the reporting period of PHCP.

-7-



HEALtHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Community Health Services Network. LLC (CHSN)

The Organization.became one of thirteen partners by making a capital contribution of $1,000 to
CHSN during 2017. CHSN's prirnary focus is to increase the level of integration of coordinated
care acrdss'' the service delivery system amongst agencies providing medical care,- behavioral
health, and substance use disorder ̂ treatment. All of the services in which the Organization is
involved In this-project are within the scope as an 'FQHC, including intefagericy collaboration,
direct 'delivery of substance abuse disorder counseling services and care boordination and
outreach services. The Organization's investment in CHSN Is reported using the equity fhethod
and the investment amounted to $639 and $974 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the reporting
period of CHSN.

Assets Limited As To Use

Assets limited as to use. consist of cash set aside under loan agreements for repairs and
maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan and assets designated by the Board of
Directors.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depredation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are" capitalized.
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted
support unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of
long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of
cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets or used to extinguish debt
related to long-lived assets, are reported as restricted support. In the absence of explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor
restrictions are reported when the donated, acquired long-lived assets are placed in service, or for
gifts of cash restricted for the extinguishment of debt related to long-lived assets, as debt
payments are made.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted In future periods as
final settlements are determined.

-8-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.
\

Notes to Financial Statements

. September 30, 2018 and 2017

340B Drug Pricing Program

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide, outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts \with local pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill.Medicare and
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement re.ceived by the pharmacies
is-remitted to.the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated
fromithe program is included in patient service revenue. The cost of drug replenishments and
contracted expenses incurred related to the program are included in other operating expenses.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients yyho meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discpunt
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue.

Functional Expenses

—The-.Organization-provides-various-services to-residents^within its geographic-Iocation-Expenses-
related, to. providing these services are as follows:

2018 20lV

Program services $ 4,238,736 $ 3,819,507
Administrative and general 729.038 709,626

:  — $-4:967:774-'$-4:529:i33—

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations and changes in net assets reflect the excess of revenue over
expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the excess of-revenue over
expenses, consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including
assets acquired using contributions which, by donor restriction, were to.be used for the purposes
of acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through January 28, 2019, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

-9-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

2. Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use are as follows:

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Rural Development
(Rural Development) loan agreements •

Designated by the governing board for
Working capital
Capital acquisition and maintenance

Total

3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

Land

Building and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

4. Line of Credit

2018 2017

$  106,938 $ 104,448

40,000

21.198

40,000

13.853

$  168.136 $ 158.301

2018 2017

$  109,217 $ 109,217
1,999,965 1,999,965

103,276

309.473

2,521,931

852.500

103,276

309.473

2,521,931

775.562

$ 1.669.431 $ 1.746.369

The Organization has a $300,000 line of credit arrangement with a local bank payable on demand,
through March 2019, with interest at 5.5%"at September 30, 2018. The outstanding balance on the
line of credit was $71,787 and $101,204 at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Borrowings on the line of credit are collateralized by all of the Organization's business assets. The
line of credit contains a minimum debt service coverage covenant requirement which was met at
September 30, 2018.

-10-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

5. Lonq-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

4.125% promissory note payable to Rural Development,
through March 2037, paid in monthly installments of $8,186,
including interest. The note is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization.

3.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development,
through-May~20 527-paid-in-monthly-installm8nts of--il-384r
including interest. The note is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization.

Total

_ Less current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

6. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is as follows:

Gross charges
Less: Contractual adjustments

Sliding fee scale discounts

Medical and dental patient service revenue
340B pharmacy revenue

Total patient service revenue

2018 2017

$ 1,268,028 $ 1.312,944

333.052

1,601,080
53.446

338.323

1,651,267

50.187

$ 1.547.634 $ 1.601.080

53,446

54,586

56,833
59,173

61,609

2018 2017

$ 4,130,991 $ 3,819,762
(1,171,253) (1.020,240)

(93.8951 (115.8871

2,865,843
944.310

2,683,635

648.985

$ 3.810.153 $ 3.332.620
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

Revenue from the Medicald and Medicare programs accounted for approximately 46% and 22%,
respectively, of the Organization's gross patient service revenue for the year ended September 30,
2018 and 50% and 23%, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2017. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Management believes that the Organization is in compliance with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to., future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion frorri the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Differences between amounts previously
estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in
patient service revenue in the year that such amounts becomie known. • , •

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement is subject
to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost reports have been
audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through September 30, 2017.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid, certain commercial
insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The
basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes prospectively-determined
rates per visit and discounts from established charges.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to clients who meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts
less than its established rates. Because the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. The Organization
estimates the costs associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio of total cost to
total gross charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges
associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of providing
services to patients under the Organization's charity care policy was $106,101 and $136,747 for
the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants. Local community support consists of
contributions, and United Way and municipal appropriations.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2018 and 2017

7. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a contributory defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The
Organization contributed $61,028 and $58,865 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

.V ' ' •

8. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2018, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, In the opinion of management,
-will-be-settled-for-amountSHn-exeess-Gf-both-F-TGA-and-mediGal-malpraGtiGe-insurance-coverage,

nor are there any unasserted claims or Incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice Insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.

9. Concentration of Risk

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial Institutions which exceed federal depository
insurancellmltsrThe-Organizatlon-has not experienced lossesHn such-accounts and-management
believes_the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

/•

The Organization grants credjt without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following Is a summary of gross accounts
receivable, by funding source: _

2018 2017

Medicare 25 % 32 %
Medicaid 43 % 42 %
Other ^ % 26 %

100% 100%

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended September 30, 201.8 and 2017, grants from DHHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 73% and 74%, respectively, of grants, contracts and contributions.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Qrantor/Prourani'Tltle^^^'^

Federal CFDA

—Number—

Pass-Through

Contract

Number^

Total

Federal

United States Department of Health and Human Services

Direct

Health Centers Cluster

Consolidated Health Centers (Community Health Centers,
Migrant Health Centers, Health Care for the Homeless, and
Public Housing Primary Care)

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and Expanded
Services Under the Health Center Program

Total Health Centers Cluster

93.224

93.527

255,864

1,126,323

1,382,187

Rass-Thmuah- - - - .. - -

, State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant Funded

Solely with Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)
Cancer Prevention and Controi Programs for State, Territorial
and Tribal Organizations
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.

_  Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in Federally-
facilitated and State Partnership Marketplaces ' - . - .

Total Federal Awards, All Programs

93.758

93.898

93.994

93T332

102-500731/90072003

102-500731/90080081

102-500731/90080000

1NAVA"150228-02-00

8,501

13,994

38,492

'37;750'

$  1,480,924

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30. 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity
of HealthPirst Family Care Center, Inc. (the Organization). The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expehditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
vyherein ■ certain types of expenditures are hot allowable or "are-limited "as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal
course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available. The Organization has elected not to use the 10
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

-15-



BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASEDbNANAUDIT-OF-FINANCIALSTATENIENTS^RFORMEP
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDfTlNG STANDARDS

Board of Directors
HeatthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. .

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller
-Genera!-of-the-United-States,-the_financiaL8tatementS-of_HeaIthFirst_Famlty_Care_Conter,-lnc._(the_
Orgah^ation), y^ich comprise the balance sheet ̂  of September 30, 2018, and tee related
^temer^ of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, arid the
related notes to tee financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 28, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting _ .

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
-intem3l-control-over-financial-reporting (intemal-control)-to determine-the-auditing procedures teat-are-
apprqpr^ in the drcumstancqs for the purpose of expressing our opinion on tee financial statements,
btrt not fbrtee purpd^ of expressing an opinion on tee effectiveness of tee Orgariizatidri's iritemal
cdr^di Aaxjrdirigly, W do not express an opiriidn on the effectiveriess of tee Orgahization's internal
corteol.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
~dete"ctl[fid"?5Oirectrtelsstatements~on~a~timely"basis~A~mafena/-w0aA/Tess-is-a-deficiencyror-a-
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such teat there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have riot been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency
in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item
2018-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Banger, ME • Portland. ME • Manchester, NPi • Giastonbury. CT • Charleston, WV • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

HeaithPirst Family Care Center, Inc.'s Response to Findings

The Organization's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was hot subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
January 28, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

Board of Directors

HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc/s (the Organization's) compliance with the types
of-compliance-requirements-described-in-the-OMB-Compnance-Supplement-that-couId-have-a-direct-
and material effect on its. major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2018^ The
Organization's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Managements Responsfbinty. .

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
-conditions-of its-federal-awards-applicable to its federal programs: —

Auditor's Respqnslblijty

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Organization's major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable
to finandal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
"IR^Uhrted'Slates; and"the audit reqwfer(^1s~&t'Tfild~2~U:SrCode~orF0deTarRegulations'Psrt2OO7
Uniform Administrative RequirementSt Cost Prtndpies, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's comprtance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. complied, in all materiat respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major
federal program for the year ended September 30,2018,

F3an9or, ME • Po?tland, ME • Manchesier Nl i • Glastonbury. CT • Charleston, VW • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001. Our opinion on the major federal program
Is not modified with respect to this matter.

The Organization's response to the noncompliance finding Identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,- accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization Is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective Internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on Internal control over
compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies. In internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet Important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we Identified a deficiency In internal control over compliance, as described In the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as Item 2018-001, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.
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Board of Directors

HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.

The Organization's response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying-schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and.
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

ISUM^
Portland, Maine

January 28, 2019
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER. INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2018

1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Unmodified

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

□

0

Yes

Yes

0

□

No

None reported

Noncompliance material to financiaf statements noted? Yes 0 No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

□

0

Yes

Yes

0

□ ■

No

None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 0 Yes □ No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Prooram or Cluster

Health Centers Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 0 Yes □ No
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2018

2. Financial Statement Findings

Information on the

Federal Program:

Criteria:

Condition Found

and Context:

Cause and Effect:

Questioned Costs:

Repeat Finding:

Recommendation:

Program Name: Health Centers Cluster (CFDA numbers 93.224
and 93.527)

Grant Award: 5 H80CS00295-15 from.March 1, 2017 through
February 28, 2018 and 5 H80CS00295-16 from March 1, 2018 through
February 28, 2019

Agency: Health Resources and Services Administration
Pass-Through Entity: n/a

in accordance with 42 USC 254(k)(3)(F). as an FQHC, the Organization
must prepare and apply a sliding fee discount schedule so that"~the
amounts owed for the Organization's services by eligible patients are
adjusted (discounted) based on the patient's ability to pay.

The Organization has not applied sliding fee discounts to patientxharges
consistent with its sliding fee discount schedule. Through testing the
application of the Organization's sliding fee policy to 25 individual patient
balances, we noted the sliding fee discount applied was not consistent
with the Organization's sliding fee discount policy for two patients. The
total difference between the discount and the policy was less than 1% of
the sample tested.

The errors noted in the testing were the result of the following:

1. Billing system setup issue which resulted in the sliding fee
discount category defaulting to 100% discount (not part of the
Organization's sliding fee discount schedule) if the patient's
insurance was changed during the year.

2. The prior year sliding fee discount schedule was used to
determine the sliding fee discount upon approval of the patient's
application.

The above errors resulted in incorrect sliding fee discounts which resulted
in patients paying more than or less than required under the Organization
sliding fee discount policy.

None

Yes (2017-001)

We continue to recommend management develop and improve current
monitoring processes for the sliding fee discount program and to stress
the importance of the elimination of old sliding fee discount schedules
once a new schedule has been approved.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended September 30, 2018

2. Financial Statement Findings (Concluded)

Finding Number: 2018-001 (Concluded)

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective

Action Plan: Management agrees with the finding. The sliding fee discount schedule is
being' posted to each payer within the billing system to eliminate the
default which resulted in one of the errors noted above. Additionally, it
has been stressed to all staff involved in the sliding fee discount process
to dispose of the old. schedules once new schedules have been

approved. Documented reviews of sliding fee scale adjustments will
continue, to be completed to ensure compliance with the Organization's
sliding fee discount policy.

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Number: 2018-001
Refer to finding above.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

Year Ended September 30, 2017

Finding Number: 2017-001

Information on the

Federal Program:

Prior Year Criteria:

Prior Year Condition:

Recommendation:

Status:

Program Name: Health Centers Cluster (CFDA numbers 93.224
and 93.527)

Grant Award: 5 H80CS00295-15 from March 1, 2016 through
February 28. 2017 and 5 H80CS00295-16 from March 1, 2017 through
February 28, 2018 '

Agency: Health Resources and Services Administration
Pass-Through Entity: n/a

Sliding fee adjustments should follow the Organization's sliding fee policy.

The Organization has not consistently followed the sliding fee policy.

We recommend management development monitoring processes for the
sliding fee discount program.

Repeat finding - see Finding 2018-001
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HealthFirst
"Heahh care for the mtHoUfamily

Corrective Action Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2018

2, Financial Statement Findings Finding Number: 2018^01

Condition Found:

The Organization has not consistently applied sliding fee discounts to patient charges consistent with its sliding
fee discount schedule.

Cause: The errors noted in the testing were the result of the following:

1. Billing system setup issue which resulted in the sliding fee discount category defaulting to 100% discount
(not part of the Organization's sliding fee discount schedule) if the patient's insurance was changed during
the year. The sliding fee program utilized one insurance plan assigned to eligible patients. This required the

manual entry of an allocation to apply the correct level of discount patients qualified for. On occasion, a
patient's insurance data would be updated in the registration screens. Changes to these fields would
sometimes remove the selected allocation and set the default to 100%.

Individual Responsible for Corrective Action: Paul Anctil, Billing Manager

Corrective Action Planned:

The Billing Manger is currently in the process of creating new insurance plans specific to each level of the
sliding fee program and adding these plans to all insurances within the billing system. By creating new
insurance plans specific to each level of the sliding fee program, we are able to select the correct allocation

and set it as a default. This eliminates the possibility of the allocation being removed when users are
updating insurance plans.

Anticipated Completion Date; February 2019

2. The prior year sliding fee discount schedule was used to verify the sliding fee discount upon approval of the

patient's application.

Individual Responsible for Corrective Action: Paul Anctil, Billing Manager

Corrective Action Planned:

The patient advocate position will consistently utilize the Billing System to calculate a patient's sliding fee
discount. Patient income data will be entered and generates the correct discount level based on the current
sliding fee schedule. The contract will also be scanned separately into the patient record. The billing team
can access the information to ensure that the correct discount is being applied.

Monthly, before issuing Patient Billing Statements, the Billing Manager will review all new sliding fee records

to ensure that the data entered into the billing system Is correct, that sliding fee documentation is scanned

and complete, and will verify that charges are applied at the appropriate discount.

Anticipated Compfetlon Date: February 2019



HealthFirst
"HeaUh corefor the "^^-hoUfamily"

Summary of Prior Audrt Findings

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Finding: 2017-001

Condition Found: The Organization has not consistently followed the sliding fee policy.

Planned Corrective Action:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5,..

6.

The completed & approved Sliding Fee application and the corresponding determination of the patlenfs
sliding fee amount will be scanned into the patients billing record, GE Centricity has this capability that up
untll now has not-been used— ■ - . . — .

This sliding fee determination documentation will be referenced and cross checked when Billing ̂ aff
assign a sliding fee amount to a patient encounter.
Having this documentation In-hand when Billing Department staffs are assigning the sliding fee to a
patient billing record will ensure that patient receives the correct slide or fee.
Billing Manager will document his reviews of sliding fee scale adjustments and assignments to insure
compliance with sliding fee policy,
the Billing Assistant will do monthly reviews of sliding fee patients when posting payments to ensure the
correct fee has been used,

Oh-goirig training on sliding fee and reviews of this action will be conducted by CFO,

Status:

1, HealthFirst is using this capability, documents are being scanned to patients billing record,
2, This process has not been followed on a regular basis before billing the patient. The CFO will work with

Billing Manager to make sure there is a Billing"St3ff assigned thirt^k'b^dfe bills are created to patientsT
3, Documentation is available but is not always checked so this will be assigned to a billing department staff

member.

4, CFO will make this review part of the Billing Team meetings to insure a staff involved are following
process to insure no mistakes are made,

5, This review process will be made clearer to Billing Assistant to Insure this Is done and problems spotted
and corrected before another billing is complete,

6, As part of on-going team meeting and check in meeting with Billing Manager, CFO will insure all team
members are focused on getting our sliding fee process correct.



HEALTH FIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Board of Directors Listing

Last First Title Classification Residential Address Affiliations

Bums Scott Director Community Represents S" v' -a 'j ■\ • Private Business; Former State Rep
D'Agostino Frank Director Client Representative *  /. Retire US Navy; former Paramedic
Davis Robert Client Client Representative ' :  Retired ■
Donovan Kevin Director Agency Representative i 1  '• ; ■ CEO.LRGHealthCare
Dowd Tabitha Executive Directc Agency Representative I 1  1 Exec. Director Franklin VNA
Lennon Michelle Director Community Represents :  hA '1 . . Director, Tilton Resource Center
Lunt Susan Director Agency Representative Director, Riverbend Mental Health-Franklin
MacDonald Renee Director Client Representative
Mem'man Christine Director Client Representative 't i JH (Artist
Pursiow William Secretaryn"reasu Community Representa ■  - Retired
St. Jacques, Sr. Robert Director Client Representative Retired
Stanley Michael Vice Chair Client Representative \ L Retired Air Traffic Controller
Wells James Chair Client Representative i

) Carpenter,
Wnuk Susan Director Agency Representative '  u .. . . Belknap-Merrimack County Community Action
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HEALTH ̂IRST FAMILY|GARE CENTER, INC.
I Board of Directprs Listing

Mailing Address City
i

StateZIp Tel One 1 Email ;
1

start-Datt# Terms- CurrentTerm Expires

f\jf'
:  '. 7 — 2015 2 Jun 2018 to 202; Jun 2021

1 s>:t2018 3 Got 2018to202i Oct 2021

Dec 2016 1 Dec 2016to20li Dec 2019

■ Mar 2017 1 Mar 2017 to 202( Mar 2020
'

•  - Feb2015 3 Feb2018to 202: Feb2021

. j ! . ■

I Jun2015 2 Jun 2018 to 202: Jun 2021

1
^  ̂ Mar 2018 1 Mar2018to202| Mar 2021

"• r Jan 2019 3 Jan 2019to202i Jan 2022

- ■. Mar 2017 1 Mar 2017 to 202 Mar 2020
II I , « Jun 2014 2 Jun 2018 to 202; Jun 2021

J." Jun 2017 3 Jun 2017 to 202 Jun 2020

Jul 2012 2 Jul 2016to201< Jul 2019

a>... Mar 2005 3 Mar 2017 to 202 1  Mar 2020
Mar 2009 3 Mar 2018 to 202; Mar 2021
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Diane Amero, LPN

Education

1982 - Diploma Practical Nursing, NHVTC - Berlin
1978 - Diploma Berlin Senior High School - Berlin

Honors

1981-1982 - Dean's List for three (3) consecutive semesters while attending
NHVTC-Beriin

Employment
2002-Present Health First Family Care Center Franklin, NH

Work with farnily practice physician. Set-up exam rooms,
organize flow of patients, clean exam room and instruments.
Maintain clinical tracking for client services, including follow-up,
acute care, chronic disease, preventative cxare. Assist the medical
provider with procedures and services as a chaperone. ,'aomtaom,
amd record client information in electronical medical records, ptain
and assess client medical histoiy, perform on site law work and
phlebotomy for off-site laboratory work as well as blood pressures,
weights and other routine procedures. Replenish supplies and
order

1996 - 2002 Coos County Family Health Services, Berlin, NH

1992-1996 Coos County Nursing Home, Berlin, NH

1986 - 1992. Gorham Medical Center, Gorham, NH



HealthF irst

Family Care Center inc.

Richard D, Snvcrhcrg MSSVV, LICSW

SKIUL«

MANACfEMen" AND ADMINISTRATICW

•  Directed rntegjotcd heahb and htimnn servicics, public health network
•  Served as President and ChiefExecutive Officer of a start-up Federally-Qualified Heahh Center (FQHQ
•  Managed nme departments with a combined staff of 75 and budget of S5 nuUrcn
*  Adimmsfered direct servi^ programs for adults and children
•  Dire^d consubatioo, education and Employee Assistance Programs
*  Led major program reor^ization and systems change efforts
* Wrote proposals and adminttrtered grant funded programs
•  RecmitetLtrairKdandsnpeTviseddiverseprofessionalsfafLstudentsandvohinteers
•  Prepared budgets and adnunistered financial/service contract compliance for positive bottom line
* Worked with diverse funding. Medicaid, Medicare, HMO, self-pay, and capitated contracts, cost-based

PROGRAM PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

>  Estabfobed mtCTdisciplinary teams of professionals to provide comprehciisive services
' Conducted all-mehtsive, citizen participatory regional planning processes
*  Designed and admmtstered comnnmity consultation, education and training programs
• Worked with eomrmmity groups, schools, agencies, businesses and industries to assess needs and develop

contracts for eonsuhation and training services
*  Designed and developed community housing continuum (150 beds)
*  Created primary heahheare and prevention programs in the community
•  Developed and marketed Managed Care and Employee Assistance Programs
>  Organized multi-agency consortia and affllinte networks to streamline service delivery

DIRECT SERVICE

•  Initiated groi^ services which utilized adaptive Outward Bound adventure challenge techniques
•  Delivereddrrectcommanity needs assessment, education, consultation and training
*  Carried caseload for mdrvidual, family and group treatment, and provided crises intervention services
•  Pbnned and instituted conferences and community prevention programs

TECHNICAL SKILLS

*  Facilitated pknming and all aspects of site selection and design considerations for specified clinical usage
*  Drafied and reviewed proposals and bid packages, and negotiated contracts for construction
•  Demonstrated knowledge ofbuilding. life, safety, licensing and Joint Commission orr the Accreditation of

Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) reqiiiremerrts
*  Mana^rd fixed assets inchidmg buildings, vehicles and computers
' Operated computer systems with expertise including Windows, Macintcsdi, mtworfcs. spreadsheets,

relational databases and websites

*  Desigrred and developed networked computerized clinical database systems Electronic Health Record
(TIER)

OTHER

Manied whh two grown children, hiker, camper, canoer. cross-country skier, snowsftoer. woodworker,
home builder, volunteer stage settings designer and builder whh local theatre groups, outdocrr leadership
instructor

HealthFrrsf Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-201 g-DPH.S-15-PRIMA 21



(Richard D, Sflverbcrg IMSSW, LICSW coTii'd-)

SUMMARY ,
Forty two ycn;» offiratragfiincwt arrddirecl expcrrcncc with agencies, orgnnizntions, businesses, commrtmiiy
systems, networks, groups and CTwhvidoals. Oitfrtanding skiHs in community systems onalysis, pfogsam
pianmng and newlrf^-^ Ijdkm^imfbvsrtive bimran^i^ t^hnloldgicbrw

EXPERIENCE

1995-Prcsent HcahhFirrt Family Case Ceirtef/Caring Comnnmity Network of the Twin Rivers, FrankHn, NH
President and CEO. HeaHhFirst Family Care Center (FQHC)
Managing Director, Caring Community Netwcrrk ofthe Twin Rivers

1994-Prcscnt Synergy Works Consohing
Principal

1979^(994 _ Central New Hampshire Ctwumunitv Mental Health. Concord, NH
(1987' 1994) Vice-President, Planning, Program Development and Community Support
(1979-1987) Director; Community Housing, Consultation and Editcation, EAPs

1978-1979 Cofisortium for Youth of South Central Comieclicul, New Haven, CT
Community Systems Developer

1975-1978 Human Services and Resocrccs Center, West Haven. CT
Community Based Social Worto

1979-Present Appalachian Mountain Club
Dircclof. Winter/Spring Mountain Safety Leadership Schools for New Hampshrre Cliapter

teac:hing experience

1994-2007 University ofNew Hampshbe, Graduate School of Social Work
Instructor, Social WeHare Pol^, Commimhy Organization, and SW Management

-1994-Prcscnt Univcrsrtyof-New-HampsftirevCraduate^SchooloCSocial-Work
Field Instructor

1977-1993 University of Cormectreut, Unrversrty ofNew England, Plymouth Slate College, Boston
University

Field Supervisor and Guest Leetmer to graduate social work students

EDUCATION

BS, 1974, Mi^or Biology and Social Work, Urnversity of Wisconsin, Madison
MSSW, 1975, Master of Science and Social Work. Unrversrty of Wisconsin. Madison

MEMBERSHIPS/CERTIFICATIONS

National Association ofSocial Workers (NASW), Certified sirtce 1978, LICSW, 1993
Appalachian Mountain Chib, New Hawrpshfre Chapter

COMMUNITY BOARDS

2015-Present Comnnmity Health J^rvkes Network (Integrated Delivery Network Region 5), Treasurer
1995-Prcscnl Caring CouuHUuity Network of the T win Rivers

HeallhFirst Family Care Center. Inc. KFP-20I8-DPHS-I5-PRJMA 22



(Rfehsrd V, Sftverberg MSSW, LICSVV coni*d,)

1997'Vtcsetft Commiinily Hcalfh Access Network (CHAN), Cfc^mr oTBoard
15^-Preserrt B»-State Primary Core Associalfon
2(Mj2-Preserit Winnipcsmikee River Trails Assocfatron, Cbafn of Boaid
20l3f'Presetrt Winnipesmikcc Pwblic Health Council, Chair of Board
2Ct)P-Prcsent New Hampshire Children in Nature Coalrtron. Chirir of Board

HealthF irst

Family Care Center inc.

Ted Bolognani

Professfonsl Soirimary

•  Solid background in senior management wHh strongempbasis in frriance, budget, financial planning & forecasting,
CL Rmd accounting, audit, benefit & risk insu^ce and technolo|^ implementation.

•  Proven record of building strong operational & financial stippoit ̂ sterns for tuition based academic programs and
federally funded grant programs.

•  Strong knowledge of federal rules & regulations including 0MB ctrculars, CDC, USAID and FAR & FASB
compliance issues as well as A-133 midh requirements.

•  Skilled in developing and impleme^ing standardized operating policies and procedmes for all aspects of
itdministration, accounting, grants & sub'owarding as well as overseas financial operations.

•  Over 10 years experience working inlemationafly in Africa, Asia & Eastern Europe.

Experience
Health Ffi^ Family Care Center & Caring Community Neiworfe of Twin Rivers (CCNTR)
Job Title: Chief Financial Ofilcer 2011' Fr^eni

•  Responsibility for the integrity of the financial records and mcmtoimg the daily business operations; duties include
maintenance of (he general ledger, accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll and fixed assets.

9  Prepare trial balance and financial statementsand reports to the Board oTDirectors on (he financial condition of (he
Center.

•  Provide financial analysis dala to CEO and monitors the annual budget and grants. The CFO (racks, bills and
prepares the financial reporting on each of the grants.

0  Develop policy & procedures for improving grant manaigemcnt & accounting operations.

WorfdLeamfng 20(18^'2911
iob Title: Bfrector of Finance

Direct a team of analyst; lead organization wide process such as budget development (SI 20M annual, S60M federal
grant), financial planning, quantitative analysis, mnhi'year forecasting and business & reporting systems.

•  Develop policy & procedures for improving company admrrristrative & accounting operations and international
protect mana^menl.

r Manage treasury operations, international banking, fbrergn exchange hedging and investment portfolio.
•  Oviersight on federal indirect cost control issues, granting & contracting processes and project compliance.
• Liaise wHb Board & business partners on inyestmentr fnwfget and reporting.
• Manage implementation of process improvements and tech ̂ -stenis include biKlget & reporting software, field

accounting, HR & payroll information systems and web based technology for management data.

HeahhFifSl Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-IOIS-DPH^J-IS-PRIIMA 23



(Ted Bofogffstri resume eariVd,}

The Amerfean Yfftrth Fofinrda<fon

JobThle: DfrcdorerfPhfarrce 20^5-ZOOS
•  Dtreefed <he stwfent registrar office, acccninting, human resources, twdh, risk insifrance and gdimmsffalivc

hinctwp'fOT?'f^rt«JTO(MO^MIT&"NH)~

• Directed the mfornnrtioo technology (IT) services for company's 3 office network, mchidmg instalUaion of
new email and comiramicatioo systems and moving financial systems to web pbtfbrm& Chrix desktop.

•  As senior management, parik'tpaied in strategic planning, policy formation and major decision making with
CEO & Board of Directors.

•  Served fbnmkilions Board on all financial, midit & investment matters.

InstfttrteforSnstafnabfeComrmmflfcs 2003-2005 .
Job Thl^ Director ofFinance & International Operations

•  Directed adminislration, HR, finance & business services, for headquarters and 10 coorrtry offices.
• Marched A-133 audits and re^Kmsiblc to insure USAID & 0MB rulcs^regulation eompHsxnee on prpiects,
s  -Develcped and implemented ccst-a!!ocsl:cr. pbn3,-po!:c:e5 and procedires fffr.ovcrseas operatrons.insiirmg

approval of USAID indir^ cc^ rate (NICRA).
•  Directed internatidnal finance staff in country oificcs (o insure compliance on USAID sub-award programs.
•  implemeiited a new ERp & accounting system for headquarters and provided overseas trainmg
•  Lead financial person for agency, presented financial slatcmettts to Board, audit commillee & donors.

Global HeaKhCooncfl 1998-2003
Job Title: Ffnance Director

~5 Ptfcytcdagy^my {Sagmir&'^li^fdrfacilitiesro'ecounliBgrhtrtftan resources'&'igfbrination techriology.
•  Directed grsmi & cpiitract_repCTtiiig & compliance on fe^al & privately fund^ Pfograms.

Develop^ agencies first indirect cost allocation plan anil negotiated indirect c^ rale wrtb USAID,
•  If^lem^eil new fimd accountii^ package (Blackbaud).
•  Direclty managed employee benefit programs, including 403(b) pension, health, dental & life m^iromres.
•  Provided overright on hiring & firing decisions, poyroil and employee evakialions, pay-raise & merit award

system and welfare matters. '
• Dyers^ developfflcnt and directed agencies IT systems & web-she implementati^ includes VOIP system

-t»ir^ dcdkat<d-gIP, adnrinrstet.the-VPN-frame.relay,.prgvided,direct,KC.&.LAN/WAN hardware support.
for WmNT/2000 servers, MS BackOffice & Exchange Server.

Southeasfcrrr Veroorrt Commorrfly Action 1993 -1998
Job Thlc; Director of Frnarrce

»  Directed aO admrnistrathe, personnel. IT & financial management functions.
•  Primary harson <o» Board of Dircciofs. flinders and public donors on fmaircral matters.

(Ted Bofognarri resume cont'd.)
•  Directed agiittcy accounting, grant reporting, Medicaid & Medicare billing, and federal & state compliance

program.

• Directed grant leporting &■ compliance on federal, state & privately funded projects and programs.
• Mans^ed HR systems, employee benefits, insurance and 403(b) pension plan.

CAREr IntermrtroiTall Devefopmerrt Agency 1988 -1993
Job Thic: Deputy Comitry Dfrecfor, Admhrfstrotion and Finance - Uganda

• Directed HR, IT and accountrng/financial ftinclions for country-wide operations. Tootr lead in agency
pbnirmg and itk^ grant, contract & business negof ialions

HcohhFrrsI Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-2018-DPHS-15-PRIMA 24



• - Pifcd^ grant fqwrtmg & coiiyfaoc^oo feJciai, rtale A pnvtOefy ftrodcd prbfecte."
•  Dnrd()pedtroi^gpfo^iSfin»mHR,prQairciDnit, nirMtoryconlrc4, plsfmf^&lnid^fng(pcofi^ wilb .

IbJerol fundi hg rcqomnidil*;

Title: Coptroll^ CARE. Eipcirypry lUfiefOiPcgiaMopiicBifaq ,« Soin»1to •
•  Sopefvisie Accoai^f^ HR Olid IT tyrtenif & AdnnnistfBlive stflfTfor rd)^bperotums hi 4 nUQpr refiner

can^ throu^iout Somalia. \ .
.• Pre^i^imdiaiditedmofilfalylhiaocf^dpCinMifsforfqiortif^lobradqaaftCTimimimmioJba^

78.9.tmUido.Mmage4elibaSaace A^AakPtaetlaUm^pixofaU. . . ' .
'  ' • • * ' ■ ' - ■ ' ■ ■ , ■

Edncofiop:

• Maelm of iiitcimalkmiJ Admiiinslixitwdi WorM lianm^V School for liitdrnalKi^
•  B;S^.Busui»» AdmrnietrBlkm^UanTn^yofVcniiodt

HeahhFfist Family Care Center, Inc. RFP'2018-1R'H$-I5-PIUMA 25



Kiiren Dion

Profile: Knowledgeable Licensed Nursing Assistant/Medical Assistant with more than 9

years in the healthcare field looking to be involved closer to my community.

Skills Summary:

Self Motivated Creative Thinker

Exceptional Math Skills Proficient Multi-tasker

Great Problem Solving Skills

Experience?;

2012-2014 Concord Hospital Concord, NH

Licensed Nursing Assistant, 4 East Medical/ Oncology Unit

»  Caring for and assisting patients' with their personal care while encouraging their

independence

• Obtaining and charting vital signs, blood glucose tests, EKGs, as well as specimen collection

•  Reporting to my RN any changes in appearance, behavior, or abnormal vital signs
o Msir.taining the highest respsa for patients' privacy

• Member of the Unit Practice Council, finding ways to keep our practices safe and efficient

while putting the care and comfort of our patients' and their families first

2006-2012 Concord Hospital Concord, NH

Ambassador, Food and Nutrition Services

» Acting as a liaison between nutrition and clinical aspects of patient care

• Assessing patient need such as providing assistance making decisions pertaining to the diet
ordered by the physician

•  Responding to needs of patients regularly throughout the day, while maintaining workflow
between and during meal times

o  Notifying nursing and/or dietician of any noticeable changes in patient behavior or major

changes in appetite

2007-2010 Concord Hospital Concord, NH

Rehab Aide, Inpatient Rehab Services

•  Assisted P/T and 0/T when needed to walk or transfer a patient

•  Offered assistance doing ADL exercises

•  Provided patients with assistive devices when ordered by P/T or 0/T

HealthFfFSt Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-201I8-DPHS- IS-PRIMA 74



« Attended Discharge Planning Meetings

•  Processed P/T and OA consults ordered by the physician

• Updated patient charts with information given by the PA c OA

2005-2006 Manpower Staffing Agency Concord NH

Hot Food Server, Concord Hospital

•  Setting up'and serving hot meals to visitors and employees of Concord Hospital

• Responsible for maintaining a clean and safe work area at all times
o  Setting up salad bar, making desserts, cutting up veggies and fruits, and displaying attractively

•  pr.ovlding.a.positive.and.friendly..exp.erlence.for.visitors and.ernployees.

Education

2012 American Red Cross, Concord NH

Llcensure: Licensed Nursjng Assistant

2003 Hesser Colteae.Concord NH \ ^

Diploma: Medical Assistinjg

■

HealthFiiirst Family C'aire CeinleT, Inc, RFP-20! 8-DPH£^ l>-PKIMiA 75



Alishd M. Nadeau

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Durham, NH
MS in Nursing. Concentration in Clinical Nurse Leadership August 2015

THE PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY

■  December 2004

LICENSURE & CERTIFICATIONS

■  RN Licensure, New Hampshire Expires November 2016
•  Clinical Nurse Leader Certification Expires November 2020
•  Basic Life Support for Healthcare Providers, AHA Expires January 2016

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Health First Family Care Center ^JH
Clinical Quality Assuranie Manager August 2015 - Present

■  Responsible for overall quality assurance and quality improvement program
•  Plan and implement chronic care activities

•  Develop and implement Electronic Patient Registries
"  Improve client self-management goals
"  Facilitate project planning and implementation
■  Gather and analyze quality assurance data
"  Develop quality measures

■  Help agency achieve NCQA, PCMH, and Meaningful Use certifications
"  Provide consultation and technical assistance to staff

"  Train personnel

NH Public Health Laboratories Concord NH
Laboratory Scientist III, Molecular Diagnostics Unit April 2008 - Janua.ry 2014

Performed daily complex molecular testing on human, animal and environmental specimens
Interpreted and reported the results to healthcare and public health professionals
Performed Pulsed Field Gel Electrophoresis to identify and track foodborne outbreaks of infectious organisms
Experience in DNA and RNA purification, gel electrophoresis, PGR, spectrophotometer, and sequencing
Researched and investigated scientific methodologies to advance and expand existing laboratory methods
Developed, validated, and implemented new standard operating procedures
Experience with grant preparation and progress reports, budget construction and management
Trained personnel on laboratory procedures and analytical techniques
Oversaw inventory of supplies, reagents, and instruments
Member of the Quality Assurance & Quality Control Committee and Safety Committee

Rite Aid Pharmacy Manchester, NH
Pharmacy Technician February 2009 - October 2012
"  Provided a safe and clean pharmacy by complying with procedures, rules*, and regulations
■  Maintained records by recording and filing physicians' orders and prescriptions
■  Protected patients and employees by adhering to infection-control policies and protocols
■  Oversaw inventory of pharmacy medications, supplies, and reagents
"  Provided quality customer service to patients and other healthcare providers
■  Expanded knowledge and understanding of medication risks and benefits



.. Woburn, MA
Repromedix .. ,

Senior Medical Laboratory Technologist March 2005 - March 2008
Performed daily intricate molecular testing on plasma, serum, semen, and blood for infertility determination
Experience in DNA purification, gel electrophoresis, PGR, spectrophotometer, and the Luminex 100
Researched, developed, validated, and implemented new scientific procedures to expand clinical testing capabilities
Performed quality control analysis on outgoing test results
Fvaj^ted and reported experimental analysis and outcomes to regulating agencies
Supervised various tests and problem solved their deviatfbhs
Trained new employees on laboratory procedures and analytical techniques
Managed 10 laboratory technologists during the absence of the Laboratory Supervisor

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

Member, Sigma Theta Tau Honorary Society of Nursing
Member, Alpha Epsilon Delta Honorary Society
Member, Sigma Sigma Sigma Sorority -

March 20,15 - Present

March 2003 - Present

April 2001 - Present

CUNICAL EXPERIENCE

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

Clinical Nursing Leadership Clinical
"  500 hour clinical rotation

Concord Hospital

Medical-Surgical Nursing

■  135 hour clinical rotation

Lawrence General Hospital
Maternal-Child Nursing

"  90 hour clinical rotation

New Hampshire Hospital
Mental Health Nursing

■  90 hour clinical rotation

'CohcordHospital

Nursing Fundamentals
•  90 hour clinical rotation

Lebanon. NH

January 2015 - July 2015

Concord. NH

September 2014 - December 2014

LawrencerMA"

June_2014-July 2014

Concord, NH

May2014-June 2014

Concord. NH

January 2014 - May 2014

PUBLICATIONS

Cavallo. S.J.. Daly, E.R., Seiferth, J.. Nadeau. A.M., Mahoney, J., Finnigan, J., Wikoff, P. (2015). Human
Outbreak of Salmonella Typhlmurium Associated with Exposure to Locally-made Chicken Jerky Pet
Treats, New Hampshire, 2013. Foodborne Pathogens and Disease, 12(5).

Daly, E.R.. Smith, C.M., Wikoff, P.. Seiferth, J., Finnigan, J., Nadeau, A.M., Welch, J.J. (2010). Salmonella
Enteritidis Infections Associated with a Contaminated Immersion Blender, New Hampshire, 2009.
Foodborne Pathogens and Disease, 7(9), 1083-1088.



CtsnkvAmn Vitae

Namei.Eleanor A.Yfk)fa) Jaoen^. MD,. MSA.

. •. <% /fi

'Ediic^on:- .
I983B,A. Yai® Nw Hav^ CT
i986M^ l^ey College, Cambridge, MA .

:  : ;l!?93MJ3. Univmi^^Ca|ifornmSraFr^i^ School cd^Medidne

Postdoctoral Trainmg,R»ideD^ . .<
199^1^ Rttid^ Cambridge Hosph^Cte
1996-1?^ Cbi^^fdent, C^bnd^ Hospiit^, C^

PiiinaiyrCare loten^ Comnmm
1994-19^ Ijjterai^ stehCT for hotiKl^s fKUienb widi so^^
J994-preseot Windimr St. H^tb Center, imihigrE^ and lowriocooie patieiito

-Hospi^ Appointments
,  1996-preseitt Atteiiding P^ician/Cain^dgeH^tb Alliai^

Aokl^c AppoinbiK^:
.1^3-1996 ; Clinic Fellow m Medicine, Hward Medi^ iScbobl
;  i996-presi^: Clinical liistriictor in Medicine, Hahrard Medical Sdiopi

teac^& Siqwmsbry other wp^
.  I985-I9S7 :pabrobmTeadur, Boston Ftiblic Schools, Grades 7/8.
l9S7'i^ Work^ inmethadoneprogram aikl Ho^ice CNA

;  199ib'fnesem Tad^ ̂  siqfervis^ Internal Medi^^
. TtXM-TOI 7 ̂ TaogM Harvard Medi^ Students m ipltnica] medi
2015-pres^ Clini^ she director, CHA R^den^ Prograin, WindsOT St

Ucenme, Certification arid membership
0S)^/17-41&^/l 9 Massadbnsetts Medic^ Ucasse Registration
04/13/16-04/13/26 American Board 6f Internal Medicine Recertiikatiofi:

10/12/2017 Biqnesibrphme waiver for treatment of tqnoid adklictioa '

Language spoken:
Spanish, Bengali, Hindi.

^Clinical Intierests:

Care ofpatients with clndnic psychi^c illness ai)d dnal-diagnosis patiohs,
Addktkm Mediciiie, primary care in medically-uiiderserved ar^.

Heslilil^FninlyCkiv Carter UT-TOIft-bPHS-lS-PRlMA 33



SHERYL RUSSELL

WORK EXPERIENCE
IffiALTHFlRST F>^ILY CARE CENTER, I^NKLW^^
Qmliiy Assurance A$$i$tant/BCCP. Coordinator, pec 20Q7- Pr^enf .

• Wofkc^outy vff^climaArUttf 'taibc nsmcy to tamt 'm the of coordutai^ c^onk.d'tftMe care .
fnamgrairfit and jeUdicaJ qcalhy asroram^ pro^atns for all dfeols of Heahb.Fim Faunly Cve C^er to help i'mproyt
pniieta-cetAif^ cart utid mleo

•  AsMt to intoonf^ Ibaf Ibe team members me planning and tbtplraeiilmg ebrome eare aetivities in a coordinated
fasbtoo accord^ to best pi^ices from hatiOMl aiid local prd^ams to be^ improyt dieot Klf^nmhagemdit goals..

•  Assist the aglei^ «^b acbteviog and maintaining NCQA, M^ical Hbime aod.Mea^^ol Use ceiriirications tbrou^ .
data cpUedtoo and follpw-op.

•: BCCP: Navigaimg womea wilbbul insurance, tmdcr insured, or have bigb deductiblM foy Breast and Cervical cancCT
'' screeoiogs, diagoodics and treatoM^. ''
•  Provide si^ipprt to ItuOTed imd uniosutod Men and Woineb agr^O f for cdlpreetal ii^eddb^ .
•  ̂Comomiiity Healtb Worker: I^oaging insmmi women a^ 21 r74 for bremrt aod cervical cancer screrain^;
•  Navigate patients throogb barriers that prevent them from folio wing thrdogb screempg's.
•  Coirtact and sebedde patient's for screenings.

M^'s and Chiidren's Clothing Buyer, Mar 1990 - Atig 2002 . . " ■
•  Attdid ftUbum sbom to j^ber inforiiMtioh. about fashion trends arid c^snmer prefermices.' .
• Mt^toin fteords of business trapsactiphs and proditcl inventories, repprtistg dato to conqpanies or goyeroment

ageiieidf.asneceasary..''-''
•  InieryiemaddlmtsUff^atsdoytTUewlafftriimog.
•  Maintain r^rds of goods ordered and revived.
.• Devek^ and impkipent purchasing and contract nmnagement instrodioiis, policies, and fwo^c^s.
•  RcMlve vendor or contrambr ̂ ^ancies. and claims against st^liers. .
•  Resolve cusitomm-cdi^laints. regarding sales and service,
f  , .'Openi^ add. ckwi^ of store
•  Corqiiete mapageinentprnnaiices for managed departments

-  : Bar/Restaurahi Manager. hldv J98S ~ Sep 1989
•  . Greet paitrdos
•  Trmn'staff mendiers^.'

•  Observe and mofdtw.idafr performance to ebsme efficient o^atioiis and adlMveiice to fMilhy's policies and
procedures,

•  Interview add hire i^iplicants.
•  Prepare required p^ierwork pertaining to Restaurant functions.
•  Assign dhdies to woHrers, arid schedule shifts.
•  Purchase siqiipiies, and iuraii^ for outsiide services, such as deliveries, laundry^ nniintenaoce add ri^air, and trash .

cdUection.
•  Answer inquiries pertaidii^ to policies and services, and resolve complaints.
V  Inspect pdbBc meas, and ̂ oun^ for clemiliness and appearance.

EDUCATION
SOUTHERN NH UNIVERSITY, MANCHESTER, NH

Business Ar^inistratUrn w/epncentration in Healthcare Mahagement Cai^idate. Expected gradudtion; Jan 2019

HESSER. CONOCRp. NH
Medical Assistant, Dec 2005

MERRIMACK VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL, PENACOOK, NH

ADDITIONAL SKILLS

•  BLS nod AED certified, EMT, Proficient id Centricity, Microsdh 365



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

BCCP Key Persoimel

•

,

Name Job Title Salary % Paid

from this

Contract

Amount

Paid from

this'

Contract

Amero, Diane Patient Care Coordinator $53,560.00 0% 0%

Bolognani, Ted Chief Financial Officer $123,177.00 0% ■ 0%

Dion, Karen Certified Medical Assistant $32,136.00 .0% 0%

Nadeau, Alisha Clinical QuMity Assurance
Manager

$87,152.00 0% 0%

Russell, Sheryl Quality Medical Assistant $48,375.00 12% $5,805.05
Silverberg, Richard President and CEO $159,702.00^ 0% 0%

Janeway, Nora Medical Director $165,994.00 0% • 0%



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commtssioner

Lisa Morris, MSSW
Director

STATE OK NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29 IIAZEiN DRIVE. CONCORD, Nil 03301-6527
603-271-4501 1-800-8S2-334S Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-73S-2964

U

Y  DIVISION OF
Public Health Services
''"einnghwVi.wwiFqaaMM iMucrgmibi jll

March 16, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into agreements with four (4) vendors, as listed in the table below, for the provision of services to
improve the breast and cervical cancer screening rates, specifically in the counties of Strafford,
Belknap, Merrimack. Rockingham and Hillsborough in an amount not to exceed $206,673 effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30. 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Vendor Number Location Amount
HealthFirst Family Care Center,
Inc.

158221-B001 . 841 Central Street, Franklin, NH
03235

$16,500

Manchester Community Health
Center

157274-B001 145 Hollis Street, Manchester NH
03101

$44,504

Greater Seacoast Community
Health (formerly known as
Families First of the Greater

Seacoast and Goodwin

Community Health)

166629-8001 100 Campus Drive, Portsmouth, ,
Nl^ 03801

$68,252

Catholic Medical Center 177240- 8002 100 McGregor Street,
Manchester, NH 03102

$77,417

Total Amount $206,673

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Years 2018 and SFY 2019, with"
authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Oiffice, without further
approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-56590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES
COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

See Attached Fiscal Details.



EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide outreach and education to improve cancer screening
rates among low income women. The selected vendors will prioritize serving uninsured and
underinsured women between the ages of 21 and 64 whose incomes are at or below 250% of the
Federal Poverty Level.

In 2014, cancer was the leading cause of death in New Hampshire. Breast cancer incidence
rates m the state continue to be higher than the national levels with New Hampshire ranking second
highest in the country. Breast cancer is the most frequently diagnosed cancer among women in New
Hampshire and in the United States. Nearly 83% of women in New Hampshire complete their
recommended screening mammogram placing NH as the seventh highest for screening in the US.
however disparities in screening rates persist among low income women with lower educational
attainment. Due to advances in screening, early detection and treatment. New Hampshire currently
ranks seventh lowest for breast cancer mortality rates in the country. Between 2009 and 2013, close to
75/0 of documented breast cancers in New Hampshire were diagnosed at a localized stage where the
five-year survival rate is 98.8%. a . vvicicuic

* Ce^ical cancer is one of the only preventable cancers when abnormal cells are found through a
■ T. of women in New Hampshire receive routine screening for cervical cancer(85.3/o) and we are the state with the lowest incidence rate of cervical cancer. Nearly'77% of cervical

cancers are diagnosed at the localized stage when the five-year-survival rate is 91.3% Equally as
important are the number of precancerous cells detected and removed prior to the development of
cervical cancer. « . ^

By Improving cancer screening rates. DPHS seeks to reduce mortality from breast and cervical
cancer in New Hampshire. The early detection of breast and cervical cancer through screening greatly
improves cancer patients'survival. y ycduy

HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc., Manchester Community Health Center, Greater Seacoast
Community Health (formerly known as Families First of the Greater Seacoast and Goodwin Community
Health) and Catholic Medical Center were selected for this project through a competitive bid process A
Request for Proposals/Applications was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services'
web site from October 27, 2017 through December 1. 2017. The Department received four (4)
proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific
knowledge. The Score Summary is attached. . .

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions,
paragraph 3 of this contract, this Agreement reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2)
additional year{s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The folldwing performance measures will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
lent:agreement:

The. Contractor shall ensure that each of the below performance indicators are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

o  100% of required Monthly and Annual reporting is provided
o  100% of the following Deliverables are met and/or provided:



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3

, ■ Defined operational processes and procedures for reporting and clinical
performance measures, baselines and targets to the Department within
thirty (30) days of the effective date of contract

■  Provide the Health System Evidence-Based Intervention implementation
plan to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after the effective
date of contract

•  Provide a baseline of screening rates of site breast and cervical cancer
screening rates for all patients who meet the screening criteria, to The
Department within thirty (30) days of the effective date of contract

■  Provide final screening rates to The Department no later than thirty (30)
days prior to the contract completion date.

•  The Contractor shall develop and submit to The Department, a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Division of Public
Health Services may be unable to provide timely access to breast and cervical cancer services to
uninsured and low-income women in New Hampshire through the Let No Woman Be Overlooked
Program. Additionally, the Department's statewide efforts to Increase the rate of breast and cervical
cancer screening for all women in New Hampshire may be negatively irnpacted.

f

Area sen/ed: Counties of Strafford, Belknap, Merrimack, Rockingham and Hillsborough.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CFDA) #93.898, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN). 1NU58DP006298-01-00

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available,. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submi

Lisa Morris, MSSW

Director

proved by:

Ct\r—

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparitneiit of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join eotiimuniiies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FISCAL DETAILS
NH BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER SCREENING PROGRAM COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL

CANCER SCREENING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

05-95-90-902010-S6590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND

HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC. 158221-B001

State

Fiscal
Year

Class/Object Title Activity Code Amount

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080061 $5,500

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080081 $11,000

L  Total $16,500

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER 157274-B001

State

Fiscal
Class/Object Title Activity Code Amount

Year

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080081 $17,758

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080081 $26,746

1— ^ Total $44,504

FAMILIES FIRST OF THE GREATER SEACOAST (D.B.A. FAMILIES FIRJ
1  SUPPORT CENTER) 166629-B001

3T HEALTH AND

State
Fiscal

Class/Object Title Activity Code Amount

Year

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

.90080081 $20,827

2019 ■ 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080081 $47,425

1  Total $68,252

CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER 177240.B001

State

Fiscal
Class/Object Title Activity Code Amount

Year

2018 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080081 $24,650

2019 102/500731 Contracts for Prog
Svcs

90080081 $52,767

Total $77,417

Financial Details
Comprehensive Family Support Service
Page 1 of 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

NH Breast and Cervical Cancer

Screening Program Community and Clinical
Cancer Screening improvement Project

RFP Name

RFP.2018-DPHS-21-BREAS

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Stacey Smith. Pub HIth Nurse
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/lS)
Subject; NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Communitv and Clinical Cancer

Screening Improvement Project fRFP-2018-DPHS-21 -BREAS)
Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name s
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

HealthFirsl Family Care Center, Inc
1.4 Contractor Address

841 Central Street,

Franklin, NH 03235

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-934-0177

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-902010-56590000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2019

1.8 Price Limitation

$16,500.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.
Director of Contracts and Procuremer

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

7
I Contractor Signa

■ 13^^L^lmg^ledgement; State^^f .Countyof

1.12 Name an^Title of CoiftractoySignatory

>1^ . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity^rov(

itl^
1T3.1—Signature 6f N Public Peacetice

of Notary or Justice of the I^ace^tie 01 rsotary or justice ot tne reace r

kxjjiren 6. iucmjocf Sc/vi'ce
.14 State Agency Signature

10PII3 Date: ̂
16 Aporoval by the N.H. Deoanment of Administration. DivmoApproval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (^applicable)

By: Director, On;

State Agency Signatory

^\RtcioK a

17 Appro by the Genetto

Bv;

, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

w w

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executi^ C!\ouncil (ifapplicable)

By; / j On;
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2. EM PLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State''), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hercunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as showm in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 if the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation -
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment ere identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporatwi herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
conq>ensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with conununication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisioris of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Errrployment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ofthis

Page 2 of 4
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Agrccmcnl. This provision shall survive terminalion of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENTOFDEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
ofthis Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one. or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Dcftult is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this ,
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12.ASSlGNMENTfDELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licens^ in the State of New

Page
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1,9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
(" Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or.other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinical Cancer
Screening Improvement Project

^ ^

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Conlractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by .the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall adhere to the policies outlined In the New Hampshire
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP) Policy and Procedure Manual;
which can be found at https://www.dhhs.nh.Gov/dDhs/cdDc/documents/bccp-
Dolicv-orocedure-manual.Ddf

2. Scope of Work
2.1. The Contractor shall provide outreach and educational services focused on

improving cancer screening rates, with a priority to serve women within the
Contractor's service area who are:

2.1.1. Uninsured and/or underinsured.

2.1.2. Between the ages of 21 and 64'^years.

2.1.3. Living at, or below, 250% of the Federal Poverty Level.

2.2. The Contractor shall employ a clinical staff person (Registered Nurse (RN)
Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (APRN) or Medical Doctor (MD) who shall
support a Community Health Worker (CHW) to conduct outreach and
educational services as well patient navigation for women who have not recently
received breast and cen/icai screenings.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure screening services education and outreach inform
and educate the population regarding availability and benefits of receiving:

2.3.1. Clinical pelvic examinations.

2.3.2. Clinical breast examinations.

2.3.3. Papanicoiaou (Pap) tests.

2.3.4. Mammograms.

2.4. The Contractor shall develop a health system Evidence-Based intervention
(EBi) implementation plan for the health system(s) to be utilized to improve
cancer screening rates. (See Exhibit A-1 "State of New Hampshire NBCCEDP

HealtthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. Exhibit A Coniracior inltl
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinical Cancer
Screening Improvement Project

g'hibitA

Health System EBI Implementation Plan, Exhibit A-2 "Clinical & Community
Strategies to Improve Breast Cancer Screening and Exhibit A-3 "Clinical &
Community Strategies to Improve Cervical Cancer Screening") The Contractor
shall ensure the EBI plan includes, but is not limited to;

2.4.1. The date of health system EBI implementation plan;

2.4.2. The Health System name and point of contact;

2.4.3. Implementation time period and # of clinics;

2.4.4. Description of EBI planned including, but not limited to:

2.4.4.1. Environmental Approaches.

2.4.4.2. Community Clinical Linkages.

2.4.4.3. Health System Interventions.

2.4.5. An evaluation plan to capture EBI activity outcomes, number of clients

served and barriers identified to accessing breast and cervical cancer

screening;

2.4.6. A management plan, including planned program monitoring, staffing and
sustainability efforts;

2.4.7. Site breast and cervical cancer screening rates for all patients who meet

the screening criteria; and

2.4.6. A baseline assessment of clinic and patient barriers to breast and cervical

cancer screening.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide navigation services that focus on assessing and
addressing barriers to accessing cancer screening, follow-up diagnostics and/or
treatment. The Contractor shall ensure navigation services are provided by a
Registered Nurse (RN) and include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. How to assess barriers to screening;

2.5.2. How to address barriers to screening;

2.5.3. How notification of screening results is provided .;

2.5.4. How notification of abnormal screening results is provided.

2.5.5. How to complete diagnostic workups

2.5.6. How to initiate treatment for patients who receive a diagnosis of cancer.

HealtthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contrsctor Inrii8[
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinical Cancer
Screening Improvement Project

A  ̂
2.6. The Contractor shall obtain screening and, if applicable, diagnostic and

treatment data as stated in Section 2.4 and enter into Breast & Cervical, Cancer
Program's (BCCP) web-based data collection system - Med-IT.

3. Staffing
3.1. The Contractor shall ensure staff includes, but is not limited to:

3.1.1. A clinical staff person (RN, APRN, MD).

3.1.2. A Community Health Worker (CHW)

3.1.3. A Registered Nurse (RN).

3.2. The Contractor shall communicate changes in staff to The Department within
ten (10) days, to include sending the Department;

3.2.1. Resumes for added staff members

3.2.2. Copies of required licenses for added staff members

4. Reporting
4.1. The Contractor shall provide screening rate information to the Department, that

includes, but is not limited to:

4.1.1. Individual-level data on barriers to. screening, as well as strategies used to
address barrier(s).

4.1.2. Population based facility-wide breast and cervical cancer screening rates;
and

4.1.3. Quarterly updated facility-wide breast and cervical cancer screening
rates.

4.2. The Contractor shall develop a data submission process within thirty (30) days
of contract approval, upon Department approval.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide a monthly EBI reports, no later than the tenth (10"")
day of each month to the Department, which shall include, but are not limited to:

4.3.1. A report that captures all outreach and EBI activities implemented to
increase cancer screening rates.

4.3.2. A report that defines the number of clients reached and identifies barriers
to screening. The Contractor shall ensure the report includes but is not
limited to:

4.3.2.1. All outreach activities implemented to increase cancer screening
rates.

4.3.2.2. The number of clients served.

4.3.2.3. The number of clients screened.

HealtthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinicai Cancer
Screening improvement Project

Exhibit A

4.3.2.4. The outcomes and barriers to screening.

4.3.3. Monthly reports shall be provided using the Health System EBI

Implementation Plan template and. shall, at a minimum, include;

4.3.3.1. Date of health system EBI implementation plan;

4.3.3.2. Health System name and point of contact;

4.3.3.3. Implementation time period and number of clinics;

4.3.3.4. Description of EBI planned including, but not limited to

Environmental Approaches, Community Clinical Linkages and
Health System Interventions (please see Exhibit B for

description);

4.3.3.5. Evaluation plan to capture EBI activity outcomes, number of

clients served and barriers identified to accessing breast and
cervical cancer screening;

4.3.3.6. Management plan, including planned program monitoring,
staffing and sustainability efforts;

4.3.3.7. Site breast and cervical cancer screening rates for all patients

who meet the screening criteria. A baseline of screening rates
shall be provided within thirty (30) days of contract
implementation. Final screening rates shall be provided within
thirty (30) days from contract end date; and

4.3.3.8. A baseline assessment of clinic and patient barriers to breast

and cervical cancer screening.

4.4. Annual Reports - The Contractor shall provide an annual EBI report to the
Department by July 30th of each, which shall include, but is not limited to:

4.4.1. All outreach activities Implemented to increase cancer screening rates

4.4.2. The number of clients served.

4.4.3. The number of clients screened.

4.4.4. The outcomes and barriers to screening.

4.4.5. Demonstrated Community Clinical Linkages gained by facilitating
partnerships between the community and health care providers to
connect priority populations to clinical services.

4.4.6. How the Contractor identified priority populations for screening including
low Income women and other vulnerable populations.

HealtthFirst Family Care Center. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor initials^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinical Cancer
Screening Improvement Project

g^hlbit A '
5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually
achieved and' monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

5.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% Monthly and Annual reporting is
provided, as per Section 2., Reporting

5.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of Deliverables are met and/or
provided, as per Section 6., Deliverables

5.2. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective
action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

6. Oeliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall submit defined operational processes and procedures for
reporting and clinical performance measures, baselines and targets, to The
Department within thirty (30) days of the effective date of contract.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the EBI implementation plan described in Section
2.4 to the Department no later than 30 days after the Contract effective date.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide a baseline of screening rates, as descrit>ed in
Section 2.4.7, to the Department within thirty (30) days of the contract effective
date.

6.4. The Contractor shall provide final screening rates to the Department no later
than thirty (30) days prior to the contract completion date specified in Form P-37
General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date.

HealtthFlret Family Care Center. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initi
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RFP-2018-DPHS-21-BREAS

EXHIBIT A'1

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NBCCEDP HEALTH SYSTEM EBI IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
[DATE]

Health System Name Implementation Period

Health System Point pf
Contact

d of Ciinlcs Participating In
NBCCEDP Implementation

I. HEALTH SYSTEM ASSESSMENT

Health System Assessment'Approach

Brie/ly describe the assessment approach used to define the current environment within the health system and needed Interventions, (e.g..

viic.k h«;i? to (-icivr tc):l.

interviews with key staff, review of clinic and health system data).

Current Health System Environment

Briefly describe the current health system environment; internof/extemoi (e.g.. number of primary care dink sites, existing MC screening policy
and procedures, current screening processes, workflow approach, data documentof/on, B&C policy mandates from state or federal agencies.

Clii k iu'I i. !,0 i- |i',t'i' tcxl.

polilicol climate, and orgonUotionoi culture).

Description of Intervention Needs and Interventions Seiected

Briefly describe the health system processes ondproctices tiioi require intervention throughout the heofth system in order to increose breost ond

•ik • i.;. ,■ -t iv-

cervical cancer screening. Describe how selected interventions will be implemented in panicipoting clinics. Note if there are differences by clinic.

HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.
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RFP-2018-DPHS-21 -BREAS

EXHIBIT A-1

Potential Barriers and/or Challenges

ni- L l-iffi I: Ijj {-It;.';!'

BriePy deicribe any anticipated potential terriers or challenges to implementation. Note if there are differences by clinic.

Implementation Resources Available

l«f orsummariie the resources ovallatile tofocilitote successful Implementation (e.g., EHft system, clinic-bosed patient navigators). Note if
there are differences by clinic. Will the program be using Patient Navigators or CHWs to support Implementation of evidence-based

Ciic.k here to ontcr

interventions?

11. NBCCEDP HEALTH SYSTEMS EBI INTERVENTION DESCRIPTION

Objectives

List your program oblectlves for this health system partnership.

Examples:

1. By December 2017, ver^ and report baseline breast and cervical cancer screening rotes far individuals SO-74 (breast) and 21-
65 (cervical) years ofage at Health Systents ainks: Clinic A. ank B, and Clinic C.

2. By December 2017, establish system for accurately reporting annual baseline breast and cervical carKer screening rates for
Individuals 40-75 (breast) and 21-75 (cervical) yean of age at health system clinics: OinIcA, Oinic B, and Clinic C.

3. By December 2017, establish new policies at Health Systems ainlcs: Clinic A, Olnk B, and Clinic C to support Implementation of
selected priority evidence-based interventions.

4. From February 2018 to February 201S, Implement a provider assessment andRedback system In Clinics AandC, supported by
enhanced EHR tickler system and training on quality breast and cervical cancer screerUngfor participating providers in those
clinics.

5. From February 2018 to February 2019, Implement a client reminder system in Clinics B and C, supported by patient navigation
for clients not responding to multiple reminders.

■  Beginning January 2018, annually report screening rates for Health Systems Clinics: Clinic A. Clinic B, and Oink C

NBCCEDP Health Systems EBI Intervention Objectives for partnership with:

HealthFirsl Family Care Center, Inc.

RFP.2O10-DPHS-21-BReAS

Exhibil A-1
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III. PLANS FOR PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS, MANAGEMENT, AND

MONITORING

Communications with Health System Partner

Briefly describe how you will melntain communications with the health system partner regarding implementation activities, monitoring, and

evaluation.

Implementation Support

Briefly describe how you will provide on-going technical support to this health system partrter to support /mp/^mentotyon success. Include details

Clif.l. iKTt Ir- i.-r.i.L-: to.*'.

ot>o(/t who will provide support and frequency of support.

Collection of Clinic Baseline and Annual Data

Briefly describe how you will coiiaborate with this health system to collect clinic baseline breast and cervical cancer screening rates and annual

io i U

data to ctvnpilrte CDC-required clinic data forms.

HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.

RFP-201&OPHS-21-BREAS

Exnibil A.1

Page 3 of 4
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EXHIBIT A-1

Revising the Health System EBI Implementation Plan

Briefly describe how you will use feedback and mo/irtorinfl and evaluation data to review and revise this Health System £BI Implemeniotlon Plan.

Retention and Sustalnability

Briefly describe how you plan to (1) retain partners, (2) continue to collect annual screening and other data throughout the five year grant
period, and (3) promote continued Impkmentotlon, monitoring, and evaluation post-partnership.

Click Iii-tc lo

Contractor lnltials>^HealthFirsI Family Care Center, Inc. Exhibit A-1

RFP-20ie-DPHS-21-BREAS Page 4 of 4 Dale



CDC RFA DP17-1701, National Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program

HEALTH SYSTEM EBI IMPLEMENTATION WORKSHEET

This wofiuheetaulsts in fdentifying, ptonn/off. and monitoring major tasia in knpiemfnting selected priority EBIs andsupporiKe oahdties within the partner health system(s) and Its dinles. Use this tool for twersight at the
health system level. Staff at participating clinks may use this worksheet to guide Implementation at their sites as well. Although the boxes in the worksheet will expand, entries should be meaningful and concise. See sample
on the following page.

Major Task
Expected Outcome(s) of

Task

Challenges and Solutions to Task

Completion
Personfs) Responsible

for Task Due Date for Task

Information or Resources

Needed

(

i

1
— — .. '

.

j  1

i  >

i  !
1

1
i

1  ̂

1  t
'  i

r



CDC RFA DP17-1701, National Breast and Cervical Cancer Early Detection Program

HEALTH SYSTEM EBI IMPLEMENTATION WORKSHEET (SAMPLE)

Major Task Expected Outcofne(s) of Task
Challenges arxl Solutions to Task

Completion
Person(s) Responsible for

Task
Due Date for Task

Information or Resources

Needed

Validate the £HR breast i Accurate baseline clinic

and cervical cancer j screening rote
screening rate for each j
participating clinic using \
chart review i

;

i

Challenge: chart audit is costly, time-
consuming; no dedicated staff

Solution: hire consultant 20%-time to

complete

Jackie Brown, Health

System Quality

Improvement Nurse ond

Chris Brock, Grantee

Partner Data Manager

with clinic contact

December 2017 Determine methodology (e.g.,
proportion of charts to

review). Follow CDC guidance
in 'Guidance for Measuring

Breost ond Cervical Cancer

Screening Rotes in Health

System Clinics.'

For each participating | Policy refined, communicated
clinic, develop and pilot j to staff, and integrated into
policy change/protocol in ; daily operations and
support of selected priority 1 workflows
EBI 1

Challenge: integrating policy such that it
is not time-consuming and cumbersome

Solution: include staff in planning, vet
policy changes, and pilot policy on small
scale

Jonie Panic, Health

System Clinical Officer

with clinic contact

February 2018 Policy template

i
1
1

:

Troin clinic staff on : Staffknowledgeable of EBIs ! Challenge: time to complete training
selected EBIs • and how to implement :

!  Solution: troin during scheduled meeting

I  J times

George Lope2, Grantee

Partner PD

■

\  ■ . 1
January 2018- i Curriculum

\  '
i  1

Orient clinic staff to new Staff roles clarified and
policy procedures ' workflow documented and

\  communicated in staff

Challenge: time to complete training

Solution: train during scheduled meeting
times

Jackie Brown, Health '

System Quality

Improvement Nurse

1

January 2018 Final policy

For each participating \ Implementation monitored

clinic, develop I regularly, allowing for
implementation \ appropriate adaptations and

monitoring process and ; • course corrections

document outcomes ;
1

Challenge: staff time, expertise in
evaluation limited

Solution: recruit evaluotor to assist with

developing monitoring processes and

outcomes

Jonie Panic, Health

System Clinical Officer

Manager with clinic

contact

February 2018-Febuory

2019

Clinic-spedfic workflow i
outline I

t

• Conduct TA with clinics | Implementation according to
1 policy and appropriate
1 adaptations and course
■  corrections

■

Challenge: Staff time

Solution: provide multiple TA options far

implementation support- (i.e., one-on-
one, te/ecoo/erence, email, listservs)

George Lopez. Grantee

Partner PD

February 2018:Feburory

2019

\

TA plan

I
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Clinical & Community Strategies to Improve Breast Cancer Screening

The following table highlights evidence-based strategies to irnprove breast cancer screening rates in clinical and community settings.

Measurelsl: NQF: 2372, PQRS: 112, ACO, Meaningful Use

Percentage of women 50 through 74 years of age who had a mammogram to screen for breast cancer within 24 months

Clinical Approaches

Provider Assessment and Feedback
Provider assessment and feedback
interventions both evaluate provider
performance in delivering or offering
screening to clients (assessment) and present
providers with information about their
performance In providing screening services
(feedback). Feedback may describe the
performance of a group of providers (e.g.,
mean performance for a practice) or an
individual provider, and may be compared
with a goal.or standard.
Evldertce:

Median increase of 13.0%

Patient-Centered Care and/or
Community Linkages

Qient Reminders
Client reminders are written (letter, postcard,
email) or telephone messages (including
automated messages) advising people that
they are due for screening. Client reminders
may be enhanced by one or more of the
following:
•  Follow-up printed or telephone reminders
•  Additional information about indications

for, benefits of, and ways to overcome
barriers to screening

•  Assistance in scheduling appointments
Evidence:
Median increase of 14.0%

Community Wide Prevention Strategies

Structural Barriers for Qiehts
Structural barriers are non-economic burdens
or obstacles that make it difficult for people to
access cancer screening. Interventions
designed to reduce these barriers may
facilitate access to cancer screening services
by:
•  Reducing time or. distance between

service delivery settings and target
populations

•  Modifying hours of service to meet client
needs

•  Offering services in alternative or non-
clinical settings (e.g., mobile
mammography vans at worksites or in
residential communities)

•  Eliminating or simplifying administrative
procedures and other obstacles (e.g.,
scheduling assistance, patient navigators,
transportation, dependent care,
translation services, limiting the number
of clinic visits)
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Providef Reminder and Recall Systems

Reminders inform health care providers it is
time for a client's cancer screening test (called
a "reminder") or that the client Is overdue for

screening (called a "recall"). The reminders
can be provided in different ways, such as in
client charts or by e-mail.
Evidence:

Median Increase of 12%

One-on-One Education for Clients

One-on-one education delivers information to
individuals about indications for, benefits of,
and ways to overcome barriers to cancer

screening with the goal of informing,
encouraging, and motivating them to seek

recommended screening. These messages are
delivered by healthcare workers or other

health professionals, lay health advisors, or
volunteers, and are conducted by telephone
or In person in medical, community, worksite,
or household settings.

Evidence:

Median increase of 9.2%

Small Media Targeting Clients

Small media include videos and printed
materials such as letters, brochures, and
newsletters. These materials can be used to

inform and motivate people to be screened
for cancer. They can provide Information

tailored to specific individuals or targeted to
general audiences.

Evidence:

Median increase of 7.0%

Evidence:

Median increase of 17.7%

Group Education for Olents

Group education conveys information on
indications for, benefits of, and ways to
overcome barriers to screening with the goal
of informing, encouraging, and motivating
participants to seek recommended screening.
Group education is usually conducted by
health professionals or by trained laypcople
who use presentations or other teaching aids
in a lecture or interactive format, and often

incorporate role modeling or other methods.
Group education can be given to a variety of
groups, in different settings, and by different
types of educators with different backgrounds
and styles.

Evidence:

Median increase of li;5%
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Reducing Client Out-of-Pocket Costs

Interventions to reduce client out-of-pocket

costs attempt to minimize or remove

economic barriers that make It difficult for

clients to access cancer screening services.
Costs can be reduced through a variety of

approaches, including vouchers,

reimbursements, reduction in co-pays, or
adjustments in federal or state insurance

coverage.

Evidence:

Median increase of 11.5%
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ainlcal & Community Strategies to Improve Cervical Cancer Screening

The following table highlights evidence-based strategies to improve cervical cancer screening rates in clinical and community settings ouf//ned
The Guide to Community Preventive Services.

Mgasurefs): Percentage of women age 21 through 65 years of age who had a Pap test to screen for cervical cancer within the last 3 years.

in

Clinical Approaches

Provider Assessment and Feedback

Provider assessment and feedback -

interventions both evaluate provider
performance in delivering or offering
screening to clients (assessment) and present
providers with information about their

performance In providing screening services
(feedback). Feedback may describe the
performance of a group of providers (e.g.,
mean performance for a practice) or an
individual provider, and may be compared
with a goal or standard.

Evidence:

Median increase of 13.096

Patient-Centered Care and/or

Community Linkages

Client Reminders

Client reminders are written (letter, postcard,
email) or telephone messages (including
automated messages) advising people that
they are due'for screening. Client reminders
may be enhanced by one or more of the

following:

•  Follow-up printed or telephone reminders
•  Additional text or discussion with

information about indications for, benefits
of, and ways to overcome barriers to

screening

•  Assistance in scheduling appointments

Evidence:

Median increase of 10.2%

Community Wide Prevention Strategies

Reducing Structural Barriers for Clients

Structural barriers are non-ecortomic burdens
or obstacles that make it difficult for people to
access cancer screening. Interventions

designed to reduce these barriers may
facilitate access to cancer screening services
by:

•  Reducing time or distance between

service delivery settings and target
populations

•  Modifying hours of service to meet client

needs

•  Offering services in alternative or non-

clinical settings (e.g., mobile
mammography vans at worksites or in

residential communities)
•  Eliminating of simplifying administrative

procedures and other obstacles (e.g.,
scheduling assistance, patient navigators,
transportation, dependent care,

translation services, limiting the number
of clinic visits)
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Evldence:*based only on a very small number
of studies

Pap screening; median increase of 13.6%

Provider Reminder and Recall Systems Small Media Tareetine Oients Redudna Client Out-of-Pocket Costs
Reminders Inform health care providers it is

time for a client's cancer screening test (called
a "reminder") or that the client is overdue for ,

screening (called a "recall"). The reminders

can be provided in different ways, such as In

client charts or by e-mail.

Evidence:

Median Increase of 4.7%

Small media Include videos and printed

materials such as letters, brochures, and

newsletters. These materials can be used to

Inform and motivate people to be screened
for cancer. They can provide information

tailored to specific Individuals or targeted to
general audiences.

vtderKe:

Median Increase of 4.5%

Interventions to reduce client out-of-pocket
costs attempt to minimize or remove

economic barriers that make It difficult for

clients to access cancer screening services.
Costs can be reduced through a variety of
approaches, including vouchers,

reimbursements, reduction in co-pays, or
adjustments in federal or state insurance

coverage.

Evidence*: based only on a very small
number of studies

•  Pap tests: reported Increase of 17%

(SrouD Education for Clients

Group education conveys Information on

indications for, benefits of, and ways to
overcome barriers to screening with the goal
of informing, encouraging, and motivating
participants to seek recommended screening.
Group education Is usually conducted by
health professionals or by trained laypeople
who use presentations or other teaching aids
In a lecture or interactive format, and often

incorporate role modeling or other methods.
Group education can be given to a variety of
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groups, in different settings, and by different
types of educators with different backgrounds
and styles.

Evidence:*based only on a very small number
of studies

Median increase of 10.6K

OneK)n-One Education for Clients

One-on-one education delivers Information to

Individuals about indications for, benefits of,
and ways to overcome barriers to cancer

screening with the goal of Informing,
encouraging, and motivating them to seek
recommended screening. These messages are
delivered by healthcare workers or other
health professionals, lay health advisors, or
volunteers, and are conducted by telephone
or In person in medical, community, worksite,
or household settings.
Evidence:

Median increase of 8.1%

omrmn warn M Mann
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
NH Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening Program Community and Clinical Cancer
Screening Improvement Project

.  Exhibit 8

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8. Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of'
Services.

2. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related Items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may
be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval
of the Governor and Executive Council.

3. This contract is funded with 100% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC). NH Comprehensive Cancer Control Program and Cancer Registry
CFDA #93.898.

4. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance
with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
contractor's current and/or future funding.

5. Payment for said services shall be made upon approval by Governor and Executive Council:

5.1. The Contractor will submit an invoice on letterhead, with the date and authorized
signature by the twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must
be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate
payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to
Department programs and services.

5.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available. Contractors will keep detailed records of their activities related to
DHHS-funded programs and services.

5.3. Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or Invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health

29 Hazen Dr.

Concord, NH 03301

HealthFifst Family Care Center. Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials

RFP-20t^DPHS-2t-BREAS PsQe 1 ot 1 Date
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N«w Hampdhtr* D«partfn*nt of HaaKh and Human Sarvleaa
COMPLETE ONE eUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

eUdarfProenm Nama: HaalttiFirat Family Car# Cantar

BudoatRaQuaalfor Breasi & Ccrvkal Cancer Protram (BCCP) Services

Budoat Parted: January 1.2018 to Juna )0.2018
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1. Tout

Emptevaa To!53a(2S%ofwaQea) 102 60212 f  sTTiS5 551.13 60
3- CorauRanta

-E
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Lab
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Madtcal

Offica

Travel
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AudaandLeoal

Inamnca
Board Emnaai

Softwara rtCTs I  1.214,77 ion?110.43 110.43 1.2ir
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Staff Education ard TreWrw
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13, Othar (BCCP ClIEKT SERVICE) 1.140.G0 TiToo114.00 1.254.00 1.140.00 1.254

TOTAL
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BMdarfProBram N«iw: HaalthFlrvt Family Cara Cantar

Budpat Raquaat for Breast & Ccrvkal Cinrcr Program fBCCP) Services

BudoafPartod: July 1,2018 to Juna M. 2019

■S'S'

1. Total SalafvAVapaa
Empiow Bananta t

541
rT40725%ofwaQaal 2.270,60 6  227.07 1.248AS 1.135.54 113.53 1,248J81.135
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Board E«>ania»

9. SoAwara 2.(M3.2fl Sons mm204^ mmmm
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11. Staff Education and TraWno
12. Si^ecrwacttfAoraamenta
13. Othar (BCCP CLIENT SERVICE) SToo 2.S08AO2.508 2.280.00 226.002.280.00

TOTAL
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractore Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
slate laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
ottier document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuate
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initial

Page i of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services

•  provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incunad by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance svith accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the pro>rislon of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audrt Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have l)een disallowed t>ecause of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum numtjer of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
sun^ve the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, prowded however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expanses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. O)ntractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor wtth respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the tertns and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this (Dontracl the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire fi^arshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal.Employment
Opporfijnity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 oj
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more employees, it will malnlain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdo|/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whfstteblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rigkts and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower RrcHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

• (c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function($). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
condittons as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the sut>contractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifv^ng all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to t>e
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
wrth state and federal laws, regulations, njles and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determin^ by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of Implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates.- or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, Is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor wrrltten notice that the Stale is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Titie V. Subtitie D;41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the foliowlng Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Titie V, Subtitie D: .41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part il of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sut>-
contraclors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon Nvhich reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grouhds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by.
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying empioyees.that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free vwrkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4,2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position titie, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - CertlScatlon regarding Drug Free Contractor initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free wor1<place through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

1.7.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here,

Contractor Name

Dat me

Title:

CUfOHHS/110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under,Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection v^h this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance wKh Its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly!

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name

Date

ymV

Name:

Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary '
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other rambles
availat)le to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," 'primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out jn the Definitions and

. Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submltUng this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "(Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibliity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

\

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debamed, suspended. Ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
bom the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Extiibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initiat
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information of a parllclpant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a.parlicipant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11 .-1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or '

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and
have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
.13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineiigibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Mto/
/

Title:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions, to execute the foiiowing
certification:

Contractor wil compiy, and wiil require any subgrantees or sut>contraclors to compiy, with any appiicabie
federai nondiscrimination requirements, which may Inciude:

- the Omnibus Crime Controi and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federai financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted educatbn programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistiebiower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistiebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, susfjension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExMbli G

Contractor Initial
CvDAcatton of CoinpiionM «M(h roquironMnt* portaining lo PoOani NonditcrirrinKion, Equal Traatmoni of FBiti.ea»ad Oryar^uttow

and WNslablowar profactiona
6/27/14

Rw.i(V2i/i4 Page 10f 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit Q

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a .due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient vrill forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor N^me:

V
ame:

n.Title:

W7/14

Rav. 1CV31/14
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified-in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:/

Da

A

ame;

Ttle:

CU<OHHafU07l3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definlttons.

a. ."Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b- "Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AGoreaatlon" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

"Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health.
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3^2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initi
Heeith Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law^ shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary"shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions ■ All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph.d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of'the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initisis.
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity. ^

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, t>ooks
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
receiyed by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving P

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor tnitiais
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard .
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause, Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatjon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit i. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

3- Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d- Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initialax xy
Health Insurance Portability Act ^
Business Associate Agreement

Page S of 8 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, retum or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this ̂ xhibit I.

Department of Health Huma^^ Services

Signature of Authorized Representative 'Sign^ure of Apwhoflze
z

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of racto

sentativ

noriz^nze presentfitiveut

V

title of thor Reped sentative
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CERTIFICATION REGARDtNG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Octot>er 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sut>-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is betow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

6.

9.

Name of entity
Amount of award

Funding agency
NAiCS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
Program source
Av^rd title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made. <

The Contractor idenlined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with ail applicabie provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

z.
Name:

Title:

aj/OHH9/n07l3
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
beiow listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is:

in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1} 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $26,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrahts, and/or

,rative agreements?coop^^

NO YES

If the answer to #2 alx)ve is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS'110713
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DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose ofthis
SOW, the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is govemed by stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (PH). Federal Tax Information (FTI),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential '
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery of contract^ services. Minimum expectations include:
2.1. Contractor shall not store or transfer data collected in connection with the services rendered

under this Agreement outside of the United States. This includes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locations.

2.2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
Information lifecycle. where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confidential information whereapplicable.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g.. laptops. USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.5. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security, events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in
support of protecting Department confidentialinfomiation

. 2.7. Maintain a documented breach notification and iricident response process. The vendor will.contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided In this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security Incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 ."Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45. Code of
Federal Regulations. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications vrill be sent to the following email addresses:

2.7.1.1. DHHSChleflnformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.Qov

2.7.1.2. DHHSInformationSecuritvOffice@dhhs.nh.aov

2.8. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its sutj-contractor systems),
the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or
contract termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed
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by the vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
will document and certify In writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification
to the Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and the vendor
prior to destruction.

2.9. If the vendor will be sutHcontracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
Slate of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an Internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will worir with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vendorwill
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey Is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an altemate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement t>etween the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, ariy State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express written consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Department.

6. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate
the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent future breach and minimize any damage or
loss resulting from the breach. The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and
recovery from the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the breach.
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